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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee is now in session. Before I
introduce the Members that are here this afternoon, and thank you for being here, you must be
wondering why I'm using this.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, not at all.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We like it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well I, I had a challenge, and every year I had a challenge with the
Lahaina/Honolua seniors in this Wii Bowling. So two years ago, I won the trophy and the
crown; last year...2010, I lost the crown; and 2011, I, I, I won the crown, and I promised the
seniors in Lahaina and Honolua that I, you know, wear it at the beginning of the meeting and
also wave this wand and zap every Council member that they think positive today. So with that,
Members, that's the story of this crown this afternoon. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's a good story, I gotta admit.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Facebook, Facebook.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair? Chair, could I borrow that for my meeting tomorrow
afternoon?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You gotta win the Wii, Mr. Carroll.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair would like to introduce the Members that are here this
afternoon. We do have all Council members present: Member Carroll, Member Baisa,
Member Cochran, Member Couch, Member Hokama, Member Victorino, Member White, and
Chairman Mateo. And again Happy New Years, Members. I'd like to introduce the
Administration personnel that are here this afternoon. We do have Adrianne Heely from the,
from the Corporation Counsel --
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MS. HEELY: Good afternoon.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --good afternoon; Mr. Sandy Baz the Budget Director, good afternoon; and
Ms. Jo-Ann Ridao, the Director of Housing and Human Concerns. Our support Staff, we do
have Scott Kaneshina as well as Camille Sakamoto.
ITEM BF-13:

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND HUMAN CONCERNS,
AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND PROGRAM ANNUAL PLAN FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2012 (CC 11-279 and CC 11-291)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we do have several people signed up for public testimony this
afternoon. For those of you that are providing public testimony this afternoon, you have three
minutes to provide your testimony, one minute to conclude, and if you can state the name of your
organization that you represent. The Chair, as well as the Committee Members, would
appreciate that. But before we take public testimony, if every one of us could turn our cell phone
to the off position or silent mode. Thank you. The first testifier this, this afternoon is
Jud Cunningham. While Jud is coming down the alleyway, Members, we just have one item on
the agenda this afternoon, it's BF-13.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MR. CUNNINGHAM: Ready? Chairman Pontanilla, Members of the Budget and Finance Committee,
the Maui County Council, Happy New Year -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Happy New Year.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: --aloha, and good afternoon. My name is Jud Cunningham and I'm speaking on
behalf of Aloha House, Incorporated. As you know, the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns has recommended that a grant in the amount of $340,000 be awarded to Aloha House
to be applied toward the purchase of existing housing in Central Maui for use as clean and sober
living. The beneficiaries of this project will be low-income, single adults that are participating in
or have recently completed intensive substance abuse treatment and require additional support in
case management to facilitate long-term recovery from alcohol and/or addiction. Aloha House
has extensive—in its thirty-something years—has extensive experience in operating programs of
substance abuse and this kind of housing program for at least the last ten to twelve years as, as
we currently have about 35 clean and sober beds in six separate locations. As we have a steady
stream of men and women, sadly, completing residential treatment—although that's a happy
note—or who are participating in the drug court, the waiting list for clean and sober support
housing is continuous. The program is largely self-sustaining through program fees or rents
charged to the participants. However, many individuals cannot afford even the modest cost of
sharing rental housing. So by acquiring a property free and clear of any debt service, Aloha
House will be better able to serve very low-income persons who would otherwise be homeless or
perhaps in other situations where the likelihood of relapse is much greater. We have surveyed
the current housing market and are confident that the.. .with the additional $100,000 committed
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to this project by our board of directors, we will be able to purchase, and if need be, to renovate
at least a three-bedroom, two-bath house of 1,600 or more square feet that can house up to five
unrelated persons which meets the County Zoning requirements for single-family dwelling.
While the concurrent number served may appear small, over time, many, many individuals will
be assisted on their road to recovery due to the turnover because the average length of stay in
clean and sober housing may be six months to two years, something like that, and then, you
know, move on. The model of clean and sober housing is well-established, we have refined
policies and procedures, house rules, et cetera, that prohibit any use of alcohol or illegal drugs by
residents. A case manager is assigned to check in with the residents weekly or more frequently
as needed, and residents are required to be participating actively in, in appropriate level of
treatment or aftercare. One of the primary barriers to successful, long-term recovery is
maintaining motivation in the face of destructive living environments that may trigger relapse
and behaviors associated with addiction. Clean and sober living programs help ensure a positive,
drug-free living environment based on a social support model which emphasizes shared,
democratic self-governance; peer support; and participation in Twelve Step or other recovery
support methods. This project is consistent with the County Consolidated Plan to increase the
inventory of units designated as affordable special needs rental housing -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: --for very low and low-income residents. The Plan also identifies special needs
housing for alcohol and drug users in treatment as a medium priority, estimating an unmet need
of 20 units. Thank you for this opportunity to address you and ask for your support of this
critically needed resource for our community.
.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Cunningham? Mister....or
Chairman Mateo -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --followed by Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Cunningham, thank you very much for providing your testimony
this afternoon. The, the request for this particular program, is this an expansion to what you
already do?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: It is. We, we don't presently own any clean and sober housing units, we have
been able rent some. Unfortunately, the cost of renting is higher in most cases than we're able to
get back from the participants because of their low-income status so we subsidize it; and the
reason we subsidize it is because we realize that it's such an important aspect for long-term
recovery for people.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So some of the clients who are currently being served by Aloha House,
this would be a...an...the, the next step for them going through this, this additional program?
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MR. CUNNINGHAM: That's, that's correct, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So those who -MR. CUNNINGHAM: And this would be additional capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --so those who.. .currently in your program, usually stay in, in your
services for what period of time?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Well, residential treatment could last anywhere from a few days if, if it's
unsuccessful, you know, detox and so on, to maybe as much as 45 days. Some persons with
co-occurring disorders, we have a contract with the State that allows us to serve them sometimes
for two or three months. But at some point they're gonna leave, and often when they leave,
they're homeless. And so we have a certain number of people that are fortunate enough that we
have beds, and they.. .they're able to move into those beds. But some people move back into the
community and they have...they're on their own pretty much to find a, a stable, supportive living
environment that's free of drugs.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And can you tell me.. .you've also indicated that there's
$100,000 that your board of directors have kinda earmarked for this program, those funds come
from where?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: They're, they're surplus funds. They...they're funds that the board has raised
over time or they, they.. .they're undesignated, undesignated funds.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you very much. Mr Chairman, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I still don't understand the term, "undesignated", for a nonprofit.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I, I.. .Chair Mateo asked one of the questions I
was gonna ask. But, specifically, how many clients do you serve at the present time?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Well, I'll just talk about our substance -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah . . . (inaudible) . . .
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MR. CUNNINGHAM: --abuse treatment, substance abuse treatment program. We have Upcountry,
leased to us by the County, a, a facility which we have rebuilt over time into a pretty modern,
nice facility that is licensed for 48 beds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: And at any given point in time, 40, 40 to 48 of those beds are, are occupied.
So.. .and then we have an outpatient program, and in our outpatient program we probably serve
between 60 and 70 persons concurrently. We run about three or four different outpatient groups
each, you know, three times a week.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Jud, what you're looking for is available housing in, what,
Central Maui or anywhere -MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you...in Central?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: We prefer Central Maui because the access to transportation -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Transportation.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: --and services, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, alright. Thank you, Jud, you guys do a great job. I
appreciate it, thank you.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair, and thank you, Jud, for being here this
afternoon. I just wanna follow up on the Chair's question. Can you elaborate about
undesignated funds?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Well, as, as you well know, Councilwoman Baisa, nonprofits can't operate on a,
on a zero-based basis. You have to be able to, to build reserves. And so our organization, you
know, a healthy...any
. healthy nonprofit organization would need maybe a few months of
reserves. Our board feels very strongly that this is a very high priority for us. And of course we
looked at the application and we were told, "Hey, you know what, if you can do some
leveraging, people like to hear that word. They like to hear that you're participating somehow."
So our board of directors is committed to that, but they're not committed to going out and raising
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the money which may take a year. They're saying they'll continue to raise money, but they're
gonna designate monies that are already in reserves for this purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, thank you very much. I think today's.. .well, you know, I've
been out of the nonprofit world for a little while, totally, not far from it. And my understanding
was they were recommending at one time at least a six-month operational reserve so that could
be substantial.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just in case you lose your funding, you'll be able to have some time to
recoup. So thank you very much -MR. CUNNINGHAM: Yeah, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and thank you for the good work you do.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? I, I do have one, Jud.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I know in the past, you've gone through CDBG for funding as well as the
funding from the grants. In this case here, have you gone to CDBG asking for funding for this
particular three-bedroom home that you wanna purchase?
MR. CUNNINGHAM: No, we, we, we have not. Last year, we, we approached CDBG, or we
submitted an application, unfortunately we missed the deadline and so we weren't considered;
but it was not for this purpose. Actually we do have a grant request in to CDBG at the present
time. I don't know what the outcome of that will be, but we're trying to go the direction of, of
solar energy for our residential campus up there because we spend about 50 to 60 thousand
dollars a year for electrical costs. And if we.. .we thought that would be another good way to
leverage resources and save money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not, thank you again, Jud.
MR. CUNNINGHAM: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is John Andersen. Members, let me remind you that the Na Hale
project is not $300,000 but $1.1 million so it's an error in your posted agenda, thank you. Go
ahead, John.
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MR. ANDERSEN: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and Committee Members, and Happy New Year
to all of you. I think it's going to be a very exciting new year and this is a very exciting way to
begin it with this Affordable Housing Plan. I distributed written testimony at the end of last
week which I hope is in your binder at this point. I'll highlight just a couple points off of that
and then expand on it. We currently have twelve families in our housing. We...with the money
that we received from HUD—we started our acquisitions a couple years ago—we've been going
through the rehabilitation and we have completed twelve homes and sold those to low and
moderate-income families. We have 18 properties total at the present time. The last five were
acquired with funding from the Affordable Housing Fund of last year. We.. .our $1 million grant
allowed us to invest $1.4 million in to acquiring those five houses. We brought $400,000 of our
own funds to the table to leverage the County funds, and we are doing all the rehabilitation
expenses using our own funds. So by just using the County funds for acquisition, we get to
leverage those funds into more and more houses that way. We expect 10 to 12 houses
permanently affordable single-family homes in move-in condition to be generated out of every
million dollars in project funding, and our track record so far has indicated that that is very
feasible. Three of the houses that we acquired with the County funding are in a neighborhood in
Kahului that acquisition prices allowed us.. .will allow us to resell these three-bedroom, two-bath
homes for $225,000 sustainable leasehold. That is affordable to a family earning 60 percent of
Area Median Income. Up until this point, we'd been able to get families as low as 70 percent of
Area Median Income into ownership. We will now be able to expand that to get families earning
as little as 60 percent of Area Median Income into move-in condition single-family homes. The
first house that we acquired with the County funding from last year is a three-bedroom, two-bath
in Makawao—and I included a flyer that we're going to start distributing next week—we're
making that house available for under $250,000. And it's a very interesting architecturallydesigned three-bedroom, two-bath in Makawao. And we've had a lot of interest among our
pooled buyers to, to get into that house. We have a larger Makawao house coming and then the
three in Kahului. But to step back from the written testimony that I gave and, and look at the big
picture, I've got to commend Director Ridao for the plan that has been presented to you today.
I've been following these plans for the last, was it, four plus years that we've -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. ANDERSEN: --been doing this. And this is by far the best, most comprehensive, and most
balanced plan yet presented to the Council. It addresses assistance for ownership, for rental, for
special...two types of special need housing, for rehabilitation of existing rental housing, for
planning for the future, it is...it, it really touches every component of need in the affordable
housing. And the thing that really impressed me with this plan when I read it, is every one of
these projects is ready to start as soon as funding becomes available. We're not talking about
housing and jobs two to three years from now, we're talking about it now. This calendar year,
you're going to see results from this plan like -MR. KANESHINA: Four minutes.
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MR. ANDERSEN: --we've never seen before. And I have to commend the Department for that. It's an
excellent plan and I recommend approval of the plan as submitted. The other thing that I would
comment on is, this has already started some exciting collaborations that you're going to see
come together in this coming year. Na Hale 0 Maui is already underway with discussions with
Habitat for Humanity to do a project together and we've started conversations with ARC of Maui
to assist them in acquiring their special need housing and happy to assist Aloha House if we can
be assistance in any way 'cause we have developed the expertise and to track these houses, to
know what's available, to acquire them, and to know what it takes to rehabilitate them. And I
think by this time next year, you will have seen partnerships develop between
affordable.. .nonprofit affordable housing providers that are going to mean great opportunities
for our workforce in the future. This is going to be an extremely exciting year for solving the
problem of affordable housing on Maui. And I thank you very much for your support. Your
support in the past years has made it possible for us to provide these homes to these families.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John. Members, questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, John, for being here and for all the
exciting news. I'm just curious, I don't know if I missed it. You...do you have a waiting list of
people that are ready to buy?
MR. ANDERSEN: Yes, we do. We maintain a pool of prequalified buyers.. .families who've gone
through a four-step process to be educated, to be lender-approved and to be knowledgeable about
our program and be ready to go. When we have a house like the one in Makawao, we will invite
them all to a private open house, they have the first opportunity because they paid their dues by
going through that. And of the 12 houses that we've completed, 10 of them went to people on
our list who went through our program. Two of 'em we had to go outside of that list because of
location and price point and different things. So we're not going to be able to, you know,
provide it for everyone, but the...by far the majority of the buyers come from our lists, go
through our orientation and they're educated and ready to buy.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Any idea how long that list is?
MR. ANDERSEN: About 20 families.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's...
MR. ANDERSEN: It's not huge, it's as we, you know, put 12 in, 12 more join up. And they have to go
through the four steps.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sure.
MR. ANDERSEN: We probably have 50 who are working their way through, but 20 completed at this
point.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well that probably makes sense. You don't want thousands of people
on a list when you know it's not realistic.
MR. ANDERSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Andersen, you mentioned that there were two families
that didn't go through your program. So...
MR. ANDERSEN: Didn't come from our prequalified list, our pool of buyers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So...
MR. ANDERSEN: They had to go through all the same education -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. ANDERSEN: --and, and all the same requirements, it's just we had to list the property on MLS to
bring them in and then -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
MR. ANDERSEN: --to put them through the requirements instead of having to go through that ahead of
time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions? Member...Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, Chairman, thank you. Good afternoon, Mr. Andersen. The
homestead that was sold, can you tell me what the, what the range of the income was? Was it as
indicated, the 120 percentile and below which gives you a big range?
MR. ANDERSEN: We only had one at the higher end of that range. All the 11 were between 70 and
100, we had one household that was like 115 percent of Area Median Income.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question, John. Can you explain the developer's fee?
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MR. ANDERSEN: Yes. The developer's fee which is $100,000, 9 percent is how we will fund our
administrative expenses that are necessary to acquire these houses, go through the rehabilitation,
and all of that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think what we'd be interested in is, for those that you have recycled and
be.. .have been able to sell to a qualified family-MR. ANDERSEN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --has anyone defaulted whereby you had to replace that family that
purchased?
MR. ANDERSEN: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So you batting 1,000 so far?
MR. ANDERSEN: We're doing just fine right now, yes. And in...since you bring up default, the
Community Land Trust model has the lowest foreclosure rate of any loan product in the country,
less than 1 percent. So we, you know, make sure that our buyers can truly afford the homes that
they're in and they know what they're getting themselves into. And in every case, their housing
expense, everything: principal, interest, insurance, you know, the taxes, the whole thing has
been less than comparable rent for the same property, but they're building equity as they pay
down their mortgage and earn a share of -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. ANDERSEN: --of the equity. And so it's, it's a, you know, one of the things that attracted me to
this program five years ago when I was researching it, was the fact that it is socially progressive
in terms of its form of ownership, but it's fiscally conservative. And we don't let people get in
over their heads, we don't let people use their house as a piggy bank. And, you know, when you
look at our country today, I think the programs we need are socially progressive, but fiscally
conservative programs; and that's what attracts me to the Community Land Trust model.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think the other thing we'd be interested in—and I think Mr. Couch brought
it up—the County has made an effort to try and take care the gap group, the 140, the 160s; that
we always hear about housing for below 80, below 100. What is.. .what are you trying to do to
address that professional gap group that we've always had a I guess a heart for from the Council?
MR. ANDERSEN: Well, one of the things that has taken place in the last few years, in terms of the over
30 percent reduction in market value of residential property, is the, the group from 120 to 160
has been helped by the market, they can afford to buy fee simple. And we've had several
families on our list that went through our program, and we've said, "Hey, if you can.. .you know,
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you're up there, if you can find a good fee simple, you go buy it 'cause you can afford to do it."
And that's exactly what they've done. The group, 120 below, is still priced out of single-family
homes. They can afford condominiums on the market, fee simple, but not single-family homes.
The help that the 140.. .or the 120 to 160 needs is down payment assistance, that's, that's what
they need to help them get into market-rate housing. But the market has provided them
affordable pricing. But below 120, they're still priced out of the single-family homes; that's why
we have to subsidize it and buy the price down to a point that they can afford to do it, and that's
where our money goes. And we're spending between 70 and 100 thousand dollars investing per
house to make it move-in condition and make it affordable. But for that subsidy, we get a
permanently affordable single-family home and that's a lot of bang for the buck for that subsidy.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And so is this where, under your project request, this 100,000 for
developer fees comes into play?
MR. ANDERSEN: Yes. That, that is.. .will cover our administrative costs for the acquisition and all the
work that takes place to do this 'cause it, it takes many months to, to acquire a house, rehabilitate
it, and resell it. And that's where, you know, we'll cover our administrative expense, from that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Andersen.
MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Andersen, for all you do. But the, the
question comes to my mind, if we're focused solely on single-family homes, could we be placing
even more families in units if we were to do part of the expenditure on condominiums'?
MR. ANDERSEN: You certainly can. One of the things that we had to take into account for the type of
property we will acquire is our ability to get...take out financing for those buyers when, you
know, they wanna buy the property. That became problematic for condominiums and still is for
many condominium complexes because they don't measure up to owner occupancy ratios and,
and things like that. So the...us, as a land trust investing in condominiums at this point in time,
was problematic because of the difficulty in getting financing with our leasehold model; whereas
for single-family, we could deliver that. The other thing that in looking at the projects that are in
the planning stages and that are coming, you know, hopefully soon, they are mostly multi-family.
And what has not been filling the bill is single-family which is why we have concentrated on the
opportunity that the foreclosure crisis has provided, of hundreds of abandoned single-family
homes are sitting on this island as we speak. We need to rehabilitate those and get people into
them. And, and that's why we focused on single-family, we knew we could get financing on it
and that is the highest demand of our pool of buyers is for single-family homes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you again, John. I saw
your products -MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and, and they're good -MR. ANDERSEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --very good. Next testifier is Sherri Dodson.
MS. DODSON: Good afternoon, nice to see you all. Happy New Year. My name's Sherri Dodson, I'm
the Executive Director for Habitat for Humanity Maui. Habitat for Humanity Maui is acquiring
foreclosed units at Harbor Lights condominium for renovation and resale to low-income
families Through the purchase and redevelopment of the foreclosed and abandoned units,
Habitat will serve not only the families, but will serve the neighborhood by pulling units out of
foreclosure and back into homeownership. Habitat traditionally serves families or individuals
who fall within the 25 to 60 percent of median income. This project is centrally located, it's
located within walking distance to schools, shopping, and services. The grounds include a
playground, pool, basketball court, and laundry facilities. Harbor Lights is an ideal location for
families, seniors, and the disabled. With an Affordable Housing grant, Habitat will be able to
renovate units and sell them under its traditional program which includes homeownership
education, debt management, and credit counseling. Habitat will sell the units for the cost of the
renovation at a zero percent interest loan and service the mortgage. We will also continue
surround services for our families with our family support committee. We have already been
approached about eight units; and since the application, we were approached by two more
sellers. One is...just got a phone call today from a seller who wants to sell us a unit in a short
sale. There's a huge demand in Harbor Lights for these units that are foreclosed. To get back
onto.. .into paying their association dues which helps the entire project and also for the people
who are being foreclosed on to be able to get out from underneath the mortgage. So we will
probably be talking about purchasing two more units.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?
MS. DODSON: That's it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And, Ms. Dodson, I'm familiar with the
housing program and the other issues that...what are the sweat equity when you purchase these
pre-existing units? What, what sweat equity is derived from this because you're buying a
already completed unit? So do they go in and...what, what happens next? You buy the unit and
then what happens?
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MS. DODSON: About 80 percent of the units that we've been approached about are completely gutted
or in horrible condition. So the first thing we've been doing is pulling out everything that's in
there, repairing plumbing problems. And so the sweat equity for our families we have
approved one...we...we've received fifty applications for these units without even advertising,
and our board has approved one family already. So they'll go in; we'll put in new cabinetry;
new flooring; all the closet doors need to be replaced; new windows—all the windows in Harbor
Lights, if you drive past, were defective, originally put in so they need to be replaced—new
window coverings which are required by the association. Those types of things will all be
included in their sweat equity. We also have opportunities obviously at other single-family
homes for them to do sweat equity. But we also include their homeowner education, their credit
counseling, and those types of things as part of their sweat equity.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's all, and that's a total package for that individual family
to occupy one of these units? And what would be the average price they would pay per month
based upon what we're looking at right now?
MS. DODSON: We...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And considering that there's renovations so that's gonna cost you
some money. I mean everything totals...sum total, what is it approximately?
MS. DODSON: We are looking at an average of about $30,000 per unit for purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. DODSON: We have hard costs; we estimate somewhere between 20 and 25 thousand for the
renovation, cabinetry, flooring, all those types of things. So the unit will be somewhere between
50 to 60 thousand. Our mortgage is zero percent interest.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. DODSON: We have the option of doing a 20-year, 25-, 30-, 40-year mortgage. So the mortgage
payments could be anywhere from $131 per month; at the high end, $262 per month. There is an
extremely high maintenance fee -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. DODSON: --at Harbor Lights -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. DODSON: --but it does include everything. It includes your electricity -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Water.
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MS. DODSON: --water, cable, garbage.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. DODSON: For a two-bedroom, one-bath, the maintenance fee is $668. So that on top of a $131
mortgage is probably gonna be about $821 a month.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. DODSON: Currently the units are being rented for 900 to 1,200 dollars a month. So people can
definitely afford that. The family that we just approved is currently a tenant of Harbor Lights,
and so they are living there paying $1,100 a month so their mortgage will come down.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no I'm glad you were able to clear the whole picture because
if you just said how much they'd have to pay, 100 to 200 dollars, really was a false facade.
Because I understand that the Harbor Lights, their maintenance fee, is pretty expensive compared
to a lot of other places; but like you said, it's all inclusive. Sad thing is, there's no way of
knowing those who abuse and those who conserve, yeah. So they -MS. DODSON: Well -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --pay one price.
MS. DODSON: --the association is in the process of individually metering each unit. In fact, on several
of the units that we are purchasing, the, the individual meters are already there. When they get
all the units individual metered, then the maintenance fee will come down considerably because
each person will pay their own electricity.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. DODSON: And they'll have obviously incentive to conserve.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, okay. And then that.. .1 understand that and they also
working towards water also to see if they can individualize the meters and do some other things
in that area. So, yeah, thank you. But I glad you clarified that so that people understand what
this really derives and what the result is, the bottom line, I call, yeah. Thank you, Sherri, and I
appreciate the job you do, thank you very much.
MS. DODSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? I have one quick
one.
MS. DODSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We were approached by Family Life Center, I think was last year, to purchase
a whole bunch of units. And the association of that particular condo, you know, wasn't satisfied
or disagreed. What was the difference between you folks and Family Life Center in purchasing
some of the units?
MS. DODSON: When we were first approached about this, the first thing we did was contact the
association and the resident manager there, Virginia, and asked them if they would be willing to
even talk to us about this. And before I could make the call, they had already talked about it
amongst themselves. Virginia who is the resident manager there, she's been there almost
20 years, used to work for Habitat for Humanity on the Mainland; she loves our program. The
association is ecstatic. We're coming in as homeowners, we're putting homeownership on the
table not rental. It's not transitional housing, it's not going to be somebody comes in and goes
out. Our program will obviously bring the maintenance fees back up. They've sort of depleted
their reserves because so many units are in foreclosure. So the association is ecstatic to say the
least that we're, we're in there. We've also been able to help. One of our groups that came in
helped with the basketball courts. They put new nets up and bought new basketballs and
softballs and soccer balls and volleyballs, all kinds of things for the kids in the, in the common
area. So I think we've made a good impression so far.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you again, Sherri.
MS. DODSON: Thanks
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Kevin Carney.
MR. CARNEY: Good afternoon, Chair Pontanilla and Members of the Committee. My name is
Kevin Carney. I'm Vice President for EAH Housing Hawaii. And I'm not here this afternoon to
talk to you about any specific item on your current agenda, although, we have submitted an
application for Affordable Housing funds; but I wanted to reintroduce myself and my company.
It's been a number of years since I've testified. The last project that we worked on was the
Kahului Town Terrace which we currently own and manage. Each housing is an affordable
housing, developer, manager, and owner. We've been around for 44 years, we are a nonprofit,
and we currently own properties on Oahu and Maui and we also manage property on Kauai. Our
Hawaii inventory right now is about 1,500 units. Our home office is in Northern California
where we also own and manage about another 8,500 units so we're just about breaking the
10,000 unit threshold. As I said, we're interested in expanding our operations on Maui. Right
now we're interested in a property in Kihei so I do expect to be coming before you again in the
very near future to, to talk about our plans for that property. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier at this time? Seeing
none, thank you again, Kevin.
MR. CARNEY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Justin Hughey?
MR. HUGHEY: Aloha, Happy New Year. My name's Justin Hughey. I'm a.. .the first person to
purchase a home through Na Hale 0 Maui, and I'm a current board member. This is really
important because I think it shows that it's a true land trust. This year we will have one-third of
the decision-making leadership of the board be comprised of homeowners, but right now it's just,
just myself. Let's see, I, I was.. .this is just a complete dream come true I mean complete, utter
dream come true. I'm a teacher in King Kamehameha III in Lahaina and teach kindergarten, first
grade, special ed., and it took me about three months to...well three weeks to realize that I was
going to have to get a second job in order to, you know, eat. And the, the idea of owning a home
was like, this is just not...just, you know, a, a nice little fantasy. But I kept, you know, my hope
alive and I kept, you know, at it and I kept looking and I... and, and Na Hale 0 Maui came
around and I just am the luckiest person in the entire state. The, you know, revitalizing
foreclosed homes and, and taking, you know, nightmare foreclosures and turning 'em into
affordable housing is just, is just amazing. My, my neighbors are thankful, you know, this...it
gives me an opportunity to stay here as a teacher. Most teachers...it's just a complete...most
teachers that come here to, to teach leave within three years because it's just the, the cost of
living is just way too ridiculous. And this allows me to stay and be a teacher and give back to
my community. And, you know, to, to, to put money back into the community, to fix up these
houses, to raise the, the profit...the...to take a, a foreclosed home that is bringing down the
property value of the surrounding houses and then to flip it and to put a, you know, a, a good
working family in there and that will bring up the, the, the price of the, the community is, is just
tremendous. Thank you for last year's 1.1 million that was sent to Na Hale 0 Maui that turned
into five homes. And I plead for you to approve the 1.1 million that would flip about 10 to 12
new, you know, nightmare foreclosures into 10 to 12 complete dream come trues like myself.
And it's just.. .I've just been completely blown away by John Andersen's expertise and vision
and everyone else that created this not-for-profit and has given me just a, a tremendous
opportunity to, you know, stay here and, you know, be a teacher. And, and thus I'm trying to
give back myself so other people like myself could have those opportunities. 'Cause I see
teachers leaving left and right 'cause it's just not possible and it's just not economically, you
know, feasible. So that's all I have to say.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? So when do you guys go
back to school?
MR. HUGHEY: Well today is furlough day so.. .or directed leave so I thought this would be a good
way.. .1, I wouldn't be here if, if that didn't happen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you.
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MR. HUGHEY: So, you know, I would've had to submit furlough...yeah, but we start tomorrow. And,
yeah, back at, back at work with the little ones.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you. I, I do have family members that are teachers, too.
MR. HUGHEY: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just can't wait for my grandchildren to go to school yet. Thank you, Justin.
MR. HUGHEY: Definitely, definitely.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HUGHEY: Is there any other...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No more questions.
MR. HUGHEY: Okay, aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Audrey McGauley.
MS. McGAULEY: Aloha, greetings to you all. So my name's Audrey McGauley and I'm from ARC of
Maui County. And we would like...we are proposing to build a group home here, Central Maui,
for three people with developmental disabilities who are in wheelchairs So we did a study with
Department of Health and found out that there's actually 30 plus individuals right now living at
home in wheelchairs who have no other place to live on Maui. And ARC of Maui has...and the
Kula San have the basic, licensed facilities for people in wheelchairs with developmental
disabilities. Kula San is the Hale Makamae wing of the skilled nursing facility. So this is a real
need and I think it was a need that was overlooked by most people because it's a small
population group, but it's a real serious need because the last people in 2011 who wanted to
come into our home had to go to Oahu to live. If you can imagine that with a developmental
disability, plus in a wheelchair, and leaving your whole family, it's like.., so that to our agency,
to our board of directors, was like we have to do something for our people here on Maui. And so
our board of directors was very generous in offering a match, a substantial match, a 50 percent
match if the County could come up with a match for us. And so that's what we're.. .that's what
this is about. And as soon as we get the money, we're gonna go for the house because we don't
want any people with disabilities in 2012 having to go.. .to get moved to Oahu to find a place
where they can live that has accessibility.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? No? Oh, Chairman Mateo
followed by Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much, Audrey,
for sharing information with us. I, I think, I think my major concern when I take a look at the
proposal you, you have submitted is, you know, I, I think optimism is great, but in reality, when
you're looking at March 2013 as a date that comes with your, your full occupancy permit, it just
doesn't seem realistic especially when you haven't even started the Molokai house that was
funded five years ago. So, you know, I, I understand that there were issues intermittently, but
it's just the long pronounced time that you take to get your housing anywhere moving worries
me because this is a second funding request added to a funding request five years prior and the
home's not even started yet. So please provide comment.
MS. McGAULEY: Uh-huh. Okay. Our Molokai project did start in '09 when we purchased the
property up in Maunaloa. We did receive CDBG funds for that and we were supposed to start,
but what we did is we wanted—Maunaloa is very expensive to develop a home over there,
although, it was gonna be the first group home on Molokai for people with developmental
disabilities—and what we did is we ran after a HUD 811 funds, and that...and we got it. It took
us a year to get it, but it was a $1 million and it allows us the 40 year of subsidy from the Feds.
This is not County or State money that's gonna have to support this house, it's gonna be Federal
money coming in. And we just felt like it was worth trying and we want it. And then HUD said,
"Okay, you have the money" and then they put us on hold and the project on hold for nine
months because of the water issue up at Maunaloa. And even though the County like remarkably
handled that and gave the people up at Maunaloa the water they deserved and it took HUD a long
time. It took 'em nine months to get all of that paperwork from that decision and bring it to their
table and say, "Yes, the house at Maunaloa is going to be sustainable for over the next 40 years
and we're gonna pay the rent for the next 40 years. We're gonna pay the upfront capital advance
and we're gonna pay the rent for the next 40 years." That is what we secured in that amount of
time since '09 when we purchased the property up there. And I still think till this day, even
though it's so long the labor of patience, it was the right decision because we are up and going,
our plans are at the HUD Department right now in San Francisco, DCAB has approved those
plans, the housing accessibility. This home is gonna be a facility that is 100 percent accessible,
very unique here and in Maui County; not only for, for wheelchair, but visually impaired and
hearing impaired, as well as developmental disability. So it's really going to be a special place
over there. I think it was worth the wait, it's up and going, we're breaking ground in 2012 and
it's gonna be there. So this house, you know, where we have no encumberments with HUD, not
even CDBG. This is affordable funds in ARC of Maui, we're not burdened by anybody.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. McGAULEY: We got the green light on this.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, thank you. And just, just another question. On your proposal, it
indicates HUD Section 811, $798,869, and Affordable Housing grant, $350,000. What is the
cost of the home?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2012

MS. McGAULEY: The cost of the home at this point I must say, Chairman Mateo, that we did not get
the HUD partnership in this project. For the Central Maui project, we did not get it. Nobody in
the State of Hawaii got HUD housing this year. We were all up against four other states, and the
decision was made outside of the State of Hawaii for HUD funds, Section 8 and Section 811
funds, nobody was awarded. And so we, we went into our second and alternate plan which is
ARC of Maui and Affordable. However, I must say even in the grant, thinking down the line,
you know, if John Andersen and the Community Foundation can.. .the Land Trust, I'm sorry, the
Land Trust can help us, I've already talked with Weinberg on how we can possibly get, you
know, their help as well with John Andersen's help. So we're working in a collaborative effort
here. Trying to think creatively, not more money, but better ways of accessing it and utilizing it
and coming together.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much for, for your responses. And I would go hang on
to John Andersen as soon as you leave the podium. Thanks, Audrey.
MS. McGAULEY: Thank you so much. Alright.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama, questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think Mr. Mateo brought up the one, the previous appropriation.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I can tell you, Chairman, that when Policy takes up how we're gonna
review grants by, by this County, I think some of the things that we need to talk about is whether
or not we're gonna approve grants by...go back to fiscal years. Because I have problems with
preappropriated money that sits out there for years before we get a comment back because of a
question from Mr. Mateo regarding an old project. If it's not going to be used, I'd rather it be
lapsed and redirected by Council for projects ready to go then just waiting years and years.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And you know my feelings, too. So thank you very much.
Thank you. Next testifier is Rebecca Woods.
MS. WOODS: Good afternoon, Council Chair and Council members and Budget Committee. Thank
you for having me here today. The reason I'm here and the reason I applied for funds is.. .well
actually I'm Becky Woods with Ka Hale A Ke Ola Homeless Resource Center and also
representing Hale Makana 0 Waiale Affordable Rentals. I'm here for Hale Makana Affordable
Rentals. Our affordable rentals, we have 230 rental units and we are probably the most
affordable rental units really in the State of Hawaii under private rental. And at this time, we
have a problem with our flooring in our top floor units. Our apartments are about 16 years old
and they were structured.. .the flooring was structured with Gyp-Crete. And what's happening is
that the flooring's all coming up in the units, and each unit costs anywhere from 12 to 20
thousand dollars to repair. So far we have repaired 21 units, and they're all upper-story units.
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We also have decking that needs to be repaired or replaced, and it's our lanai and staircases.
We've done a lot of the work ourselves. I have spent, in the last two years, over $310,000 on
these repairs. And it's really affecting our budget, our finances, and our agency needs help in the
management and, and the replacement of the... especially the floors. We have a waitlist of 200,
over 200 people on our waitlist, individuals and families I have a maintenance crew which does
an amazing job. We have 13 maintenance crew.. .employees, covering three agencies, three
facilities: Lahaina and Central as well as Hale Makana. And they're doing their best, the place
looks absolutely beautiful with all they do inside and out; but this is something that our crew
cannot do on their own, we need to hire professionals to have it done. I have received numerous
bids on trying to find and maintain the lowest cost overall. So each year I'm going out to get the
proposals for the repair of the floors and...but this is the best I can do right now. So I'm asking
for...actually I applied for more, but I am hopefully going to get $300,000 to assist us in this
overall cost. It still needs, you know, I still need a great deal of more funding, you know, in, in
the future, but these floors come up and unexpectedly. Last week I had two floors that needed
repair. And because I have a waitlist of 200 people coming into the affordable rentals, I don't
have time to wait. We can't wait for funds, we have to get the, the units done and, and bring the
people in. So that's where I am.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Done?
MS. WOODS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none...Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Woods, good afternoon.
MS. WOODS: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Out of the existing number of units at Hale Makana, and you can also
reference the other centers as well, how many, how many are unoccupied due to I guess bad
conditions of the unit?
MS. WOODS: None of them are unoccupied. We get the job done right away. We have three days that
we turn over the unit, that's all we're allowed and all I'll allow, and so we can bring people in.
So when we have a problem, we always.. .well we do keep one unit empty so that we can move
people who need their floors repaired into that unit. Once the unit, their unit, is repaired we
move 'em back in. And when we move 'ern back in, we completely paint and clean and, and
restore their unit so they'd go back to a nicer unit than when they left. But we always keep one
open in case of emergencies.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you.
MS. WOODS: You're welcome.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Woods, you know, your organization has a very storied track record
prior to your taking over your, your position including a time when they.. .your entity asked the
County for a loan to do this project. You know, we were supposed to be paid back. The County
wrote it off, okay, which still till this day irritates me.
MS. WOODS: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But part of the convincing of the Council then for that loan was that the
entity would come forth with some type of fund-raising program to pay back the original loan
and to help your agency move forward to take care some of these things you sharing with the
Committee this afternoon. Whatever happened to those plans, and did your board choose not to
follow through on that type of -MS. WOODS: Well -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --outside capital generation?
MS. WOODS: --you know, Mr. Hokama, I do.. .1 have a few things to say. And first of all, the loans
were also, as you are aware, and you required our agency to have a County audit which we did.
And if you read the results of the County audit, you will see that the County is just as responsible
as we are in the County loans. We don't have the funds to pay back, we're a nonprofit, we can't
pay back $8 million in loans. We do work together with the County in providing the services to
the community that are very much needed. And in doing so.. .to say that, what are we doing?
Well, we just spent $310,000...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that was discretionary monies you folks had, Ms. Woods?
MS. WOODS: I'm sorry, what was that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Discretionary revenues that you folks have to spend on what you and your,
your board chooses to spend on.
MS. WOODS: Well...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They're not restricted funds in any way?
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MS. WOODS: No, these are not restricted funds, absolutely not. These are just funds that we generate
through program fees and through our rentals, you know, to get the job done.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And so every year, how much do you budget for in this type of discretionary
spending?
MS. WOODS: Well, we have right now.. .so our income prior to depreciation, $105,000, that was last
year. And then after depreciation, we would be in the red 224. And but like I said, some of the
monies come from program fees that we're able to use in case, you know, issues like these things
come up like this. But right now it's to the point where we have to look other places for funding,
for assistance to help us through this so we can continue doing what we're doing.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You're pretty much, what we heard, at 100 percent since you have 200
something -MS. WOODS: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --waiting list? Your number's like 200 for your waiting list?
MS. WOODS: Yes, over 200. Yeah. And...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So your 100 percent, are you having some—I don't want to paint it
incorrectly—but you're making more revenue than expenses at 100 percent occupancy of your,
your.. .of your facilities?
MS. WOODS: Not at this time. We're just now breaking even because prior to me coming on, we had
somebody in-house, our leasing director. I don't know what happened to this person, but they
had.. .we had 27 vacancies, we had 93 applications that were not processed. When I found out, I
immediately took action, that person's no longer with us. In a year, Mr. Hokama, in a year, this
person I put in place has filled all the units, have.. .has created this waitlist I mean she's done an
amazing job, we've changed policies, we are constantly updating our policies and procedures not
only for the rentals, but for the shelter as well. We are constantly staying on top of our mission
and, you know, just to do our job better, to do what we do better. To help not only the clients,
you know, and, and the tenants which is our priority, but to help the agency and to do what we
can to assist the County, the State, and the Federal in providing us funds as little as possible. I, I
don't come to the County Council very often. I mean I come only when I absolutely need to be
here, and this is something, you know, I really have to come forward and ask for this help.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Last one, what.. .so at this 100 percent, what is your projected
shortfall on, on your revenues?
MS WOODS: I don't have that answer for you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do, do you -MS. WOODS: I can get that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --anticipate a, a small shortfall, Ms. Woods?
MS. WOODS: No, I don't, not for, not for this coming year. I think we're gonna do very well with
Hale Makana because this is the first time we've been at a 100 percent. We'll be having our
audits soon, next month. And I'm really anxious to see how it goes. I believe we're gonna do
very well, at least from where we were to where we are now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And all of your rental amounts are set by your agency or you follow State
guidelines or...
MS. WOODS: Well, they're set by the agency and as well as followed by the State and Federal
guidelines. And right now I can give you I mean, for instance, if you'd like to hear, a cost of a
studio is $550 a month; a two bedroom, 625; three bedroom is 725; and a four bedroom is 750.
Nowhere can you find affordable housing like that without being HUD supplemented, Section 8.
So we try to keep it affordable to the community as well as well maintained If you come into
our units, we do our hygiene inspections, they're absolutely amazing. I'm very proud to be a
part of that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You did a great job New Year's Eve, in that area. Thank you very much.
MS. WOODS: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? Member Couch followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Woods, Mr. Hokama asked about
a...fundraising opportunities, have you had programs to do that because I didn't quite hear
what...
MS. WOODS: Well affordable rentals, we don't have fundraising for our affordable rentals, but we do
for the shelter. We have a huge fundraiser with Kaiser; we do the Fair parking lot every year
which brings in 10 to 15 thousand dollars; we do the Ritz-Carlton Christmas Ceremony, it brings
in another 5 or 6 thousand dollars. We have mailers, community mailers, going out so.. .and
that's something new that we've just created in the last seven months. So we're making every
effort, you know, to put ourselves out there, and we also have private donations coming in as
well and, and they're substantial. And so that keeps us afloat I mean that keeps us afloat with
our, you know, we have about 90 employees and we do furloughs, our employees do six
furloughs a year and no pay raises. I mean we're making every effort to carry our weight, and
it's still, you know, it's never going to be enough, and it's a nonprofit, but I will not cut services.
What we do works and it's a continuum of care, a whole approach. But as far as our affordable
rentals, I'm very excited to, to inform you that I.. .we are in.. .working with Kaiser, they have a
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fundraiser...not a fundraiser, a community volunteer event where we have 50 to 60 doctors
coming in on Martin Luther King Day to paint our facility which will save us...I mean they're
buying the paint, that's $6,000 there, and they will be painting four of our apartment buildings.
So we're really excited, that's 36 units, and we'll be working with them in that regard.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Great, thank you for that. One question on...you, you say you...you're
at 100 percent minus one unit, how long are the families allowed to stay? Is this a transitional -MS. WOODS: Oh no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --facility or is this, they're there until...
MS. WOODS: Hale Makana is strictly.. .you can stay there as long as you want to or you're qualified to
stay there. The first year, they have to qualify to get in, and that's below the 80 percent median
income level. And they can stay.. .and the first year they're.. .they have their recertification and
they have to qualify again. After that first recertification, the clients.. .or the tenants can make as
much as they want and stay there for as long as they want, and in...what happens, though, is that
we've had several families purchase their own land or purchase their own homes because they're
able to afford to do that while they're living there. And we have really also taken the initiative to
make sure that the tenants that are there, they maintain their units, they keep their balconies,
everything clean and clear and take pride in where they live. The place is a lot better than it was
before. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So you going volunteer to paint?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, sounds good. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Ms. Woods, for being
here this afternoon.
MS. WOODS: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand how difficult it is for nonprofits at this time, particularly
one that's in the business that you are where you're dealing with people that really are at a low
point and don't have the money to pay any more.
MS. WOODS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But I'm concerned about the discussion about this loan. Did you say it
was 8 million?
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MS. WOODS: Well, we have two loans. We have the loan for West Maui and we also have the loan
for Hale Makana; they're both $4 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And how old are these loans?
MS. WOODS: Let's see. Well, Hale Makana is about 14, 15 years old and it became due in 2006,
beginning of 2007, just as I came on. The one for Hale Makana...for the West Side, is not yet
due, but it is going to be due. And I'm trying to work on that as well because I know we're
gonna go through the same thing and, and it has to be noted that—Gladys, I, I'm sure you're
aware—that these loans, from my understanding, came about as a request. I mean it was a
request that we build these facilities by the County and we did. And we didn't have the funds to
do it, but they needed to be done; and it was a partnership, according to my knowledge, between
the County and the agency. And I just feel that I think we're all doing our part, we're doing what
we're supposed to be doing in providing these services to the community. And in reality, how is
a nonprofit going to pay back that type of, you know...we're doing our, our best to provide the
services and do whatever we can on our own. And it really does ache me to think that I have to
stand here and know that I can't answer that, I can't answer how we're gonna pay it back 'cause
we can't.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I understand your situation, I'm just trying to understand and make
everybody else understand you're carrying these on your books.
MS. WOODS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And apparently, we're carrying them on the County's books. I'm not
really sure, but I can discuss this with Budget Director later. But it seems like a matter that is not
for today, but, Chair, something we should take a look at because I don't think it serves either of
us well because it doesn't sound like the potential for repayment is, is anywhere there. Not from
what I'm hearing.
MS. WOODS: And I'd like, like to say also, too, it does go on our record as a going concern. If we
didn't have them on our record, we would be in much better condition I mean our books would
be, you know, looking a lot better than they do. We've made numerous attempts to get these
issues resolved through resolutions and letters and, you know, meetings; and I would, Gladys, I
would definitely like to put this behind us. I know it's not an easy thing to do or, you know, as
far as just forgiving them I, I know that; but I don't have that answer, you guys have the answer
on how to resolve them. I can only do my part and continue doing what we're doing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to express my appreciation for the good work you've done. I
understand that things have gone much, much, much better since you've been there, and I know
it's not easy to do.
MS. WOODS: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's really our responsibility to follow up. Thank you.
MS. WOODS: Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well...yeah, thank you. And I know, Ms. Becky, you're,
you're, you're a little bit modest to say what's happening, but I can tell that right now,
Mr. Agsalog, the Mayor, myself, and others are working on this problem right now and some
resolution will be sent down to you, Mr. Chair, in the very near future. So it's not a matter that's
been left to the wayside. There's been a lot of effort to, to somehow resolve this issue. So.. .but
to go into details prematurely, it would not be helpful to anybody at this point, but it is not
something that is just sitting around. So let me assure you, Mr. Chair, that you will be receiving
something from the Finance Department; and I know Mr. Baz has been actively involved also
with this so we are working on this problem at the present time. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? And thank you again,
Ms. Woods, appreciate you being here.
MS. WOODS: Thank you very much and Happy New Year to all of you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Next testifier is Joe Molina.
MR. MOLINA: Good afternoon, everybody.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good afternoon.
MR. MOLINA: My name is Joseph Molina. Usually we start with one.. .1 know you guys on time, but
you usually start with one joke, but I not going tell you guys one joke today, you know, cut you
off on that one. But, everybody, Happy New Year. Anyway, like how Becky said, you know,
we trying to do our part at, at the homeless shelter and at the Hale Makana 0 Waiale. In fact,
I'm the Director of Maintenance, Security, and Operations there. And, yeah, we need the bucks
because what happened with...what happened is, you know, when you buy one new car, the car
you run good after a while. After the car, the ka'a uila come old, you gotta go fix so as what we
trying to do, we putting things together and fixing 'em la dat. But like, Mr. Hokama, like how
you, you know, for you especially, I know you wondering what, what we do ova dea. We cut
out...at one, at one period of time, we was...for show that we doing our part, we, we had a
garbage, garbage pickup that was costing us $127,000. Six thousand dollars for Na Hale 0
Wainee, $12,000 for Ka Hale A Ke Ola, and the remaining for Hale Makana. So what we did
was, we started to pick up our own rubbish and throw our rubbish. We saved something like
$87,000 a year on the rubbish pickup. For just show you guys that we trying to do our part. We
stay six days without pay and everybody's happy about that. Eh, we still get one job. And,
... (clears throat)... excuse me, and then I get little bit nervous. But, anyway, just for show you
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guys that, you know, the money you guys give us, you guys give us, we try use 'em in the best
that we can use 'ern which is.. .because, you know, all our employees, they doing their part. The,
you know, the company doing their part. And like how Becky said, you know, you guys like
continue with this homeless, you know, these people that no nio ' houses, we trying to give 'ern
affordable housing, we trying to do this for them; with your guys help, we can do that. So give
us the bucks, we need 'ern.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Members, any questions for Mr. Molina at this time?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Molina, for being here this afternoon. I
know you're the big maintenance guy over there. With these floors, are you actually having to
pull it all out and replace it?
MR. MOLINA: Yeah, what happened, previous.. .the previous people that put that, that flooring down
was.. .they didn't do it.. .they did everything on Sunday I think was Sunday was one day off or
one basketball day; and they didn't do the proper work and put the proper thing down. So now,
as it going, all the, all the, you know, all coming up. They get this little backing boards that they
didn't put at that time that they should've put because, you know, with the moisture and
everything, then they start cracking again so everything start coming up. So now we stay getting
all that problems. So, you know, like how Becky said, then we gotta take the whole thing out
and doing 'ern the right way. That's why cost us little bit more money. But what we did was,
too, we went through many, many construction people, put 'ern on bid, make sure, you know,
that we can get the lowest price that we can get. And right now I think we get the lowest price
that we can get in everything. They doing a terrific job. We get 87 more units for do. Hopefully
nothing this week or something. But it's coming up and, yeah, we gotta replace 'ern because,
you know, look like.. .real bad, look real bad, you know. And we like try keep up with
everybody else, you know. I'm only sure all this construction guys here and these people that
involved in taking care of the poor people, they like try get 'ern, you know, everybody think the
poor people, they going get the lowest thing for what they owe. What we like to do is keep 'ern
up to standards, too, so make them feel that, you know what, they part of the community.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, and again, Mr. Molina, you real modest about a lot of
stuff. But when you tell us how much money you guys save by doing some repairs on your
water system and your irrigation which was costing hundreds of thousands of dollars, and now
we back down to what?
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MR. MOLINA: Well, what we did, too, was we.. .the County when put in this, at the time, that we put
in—I don't know the County when partners with us—put in that water system that we have over
there. And had this gentleman, his name was Mr. Franco, and.. .Rodney Perreira's uncle, smart
gentleman. And we had this... all these bladders and everything and was costing us big money
because what had happened and, you know, the water was just running off and everything So
this gentleman came up to us, old timer, and said, you know what, you guys go change this,
change that, you guys going save big bucks. So as what we did, we just changed some minor
things around, you know, at our pumps and everything and now it's working, you know, just
about perfect I mean perfect to say that we way down on the cost of...and rainy days, we turn
'em off, you know. We make sure we monitor every day... every month we monitor, we can tell
you exactly how much gallons we use. We started, you know, follow up with like the County
and all. They go on, eh, you know what, we gotta conserve water, do this, plenty people no mo'
water. We trying to do our part on that, too. So the lines, we, we try keep the maintenance on
the lines, keep 'ern up, we try do.. .we try do as much as we can do. Even on the sprinkler
system at, at the...when they first time put on the sprinkler system, what happen was they didn't
put the check valves on I guess was cheaper. So the guys was doing the work ova dea again, just
put on, you know, the sprinkler heads and everything. So what happened, no mo' check valves,
the check valves cannot hold the water so what happened, it just continuous leaking out. So we
changed most of 'em, you know, most of the check valves and everything for conserve water,
too.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And literally that saves tens of thousands of dollars each month.
MR. MOLINA: Tens of thousand dollars. Not only that, what we doing now is we putting photovoltaic
on our roofs -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. MOLINA: --and we should be saving a big bunch of money, too. So for let you guys know that,
you know, we, we really trying to save some money so that when we come out to you guys and
ask you, you people, "You know, eh, we need some money, help us out." You know, this sound
like big money, but, you know, if we can get 'ern again, get the ka'a uila back, fix real good, you
know, can run 'ern good, we alright, and we can maintain 'ern. But, you know, as we try to
maintain, every time maintain.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe you should come to Mr. Victorino's meeting when he take
up water conservation because you guys get great ideas that we probably can use for the County
of Maui.
MR. MOLINA: Eh, you call me, I come.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I shall call.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, next testifier is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Aloha, Chair Pontanilla and Committee Members. Happy New
Year to you, and it's nice to see everyone here today on the first working day of the year so
thank you very much. My name is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez and I reside in Kihei. And I am
testifying in support of Budget and Finance Committee Item No. 13. I would like, first of all, to
commend the Department of Housing and Human Concerns for what I believe is a balanced
approach to the complex challenge of successfully investing in the development and maintenance
of affordable housing for the residents of Maui County. And the scope of the submission
ranging from social assistance housing, to special needs, to rental assistance and homeownership
strategies is a proposal that is serious and thoughtful in its scope. Each project is excellent and
stands on its own as one more tool to address a specific affordable housing need. Further, it is
my understanding that a number of the projects for which funding is being requested are ready to
go and can shortly begin the process of putting people to work, generating income and increasing
economic opportunities for our local businesses. I would also like to take a moment to thank the
Department for including the community land trust, Na Hale 0 Maui, in its funding request
before the Committee. Na Hale 0 Maui has enjoyed a successful partnership with the County in
the operation of their current Neighborhood Stabilization Program. And the proposed County of
Maui Neighborhood Revitalization Program will build on that partnership including Na Hale 0
Maui's planned contribution of 20 to 30 thousand dollars from their own project funds to pay for
all required property inspections, reports, rehabilitation work and resale expenses for each home
that is acquired under the proposed grant. I respectfully ask the Committee to support the
funding request for Na Hale 0 Maui. And again I thank you for the many years that you have
supported the development of affordable housing in Maui County and for your continuing
and...commitment to the development of affordable housing for the residents of Maui County,
mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for Tom? Seeing none, thank you again.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you and Happy New Year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Same to you and thank you for the goodies that you brought over.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: You're more than welcome, and I understand lilikoi bars are
expected during the Budget Session.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I know. Thank you again, Tom. Okay, let's see. Members, the last testifier
to sign up to provide public testimony is Mitch Skaggerberg. And if there's anyone else in the
gallery that wanna provide public testimony, please sign up with the secretary outside.
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MR. SKAGGERBERG: It's good to be here. My name's Mitch Skaggerberg. I'm representing the
Maui County Veteran's Council. We have never testified before on this issue, but we support the
budgets that's been proposed. Couple things have come up. We've.., one thing I want the
Council members to know and the Housing Department is about 65 percent of our disabled
veterans are seniors, the average age being almost 65. And many of 'em have had to go through
extended periods of readjustment counseling operations. Many of 'ern have been here 30 years
like myself and have been...not been able to afford a home; but some of the organizations here,
I've talked to individually, we're thinking this might be a possibility. Harbor Lights, in
particular, we have two or three disabled veterans that are paying a fair amount of rent, higher
than what they could purchase here. And with VA lending, they could easily.. .two of 'em are
taking care of disabled children and one a grandchild. So with this type of a program, we can get
them on a list and within a few years, perhaps get them. The other thing is the VA finally . VA
Secretary, Shinseki, has finally said that housing for disabled veterans is a national priority. And
we haven't...that's going to take a while to implement, but these programs are here right now.
The second thing is, we usually do this one at a time, we've been doing this one at a time. I'm
one of those that got an affordable house three or four years ago. So like our former testifier that
says, return what you have been given, and I firmly believe that. So we, we want to, as a
council, make this a priority this year. And I know that we've had some funding up in Honolulu,
but it's not going to get to us for this, for a year or two, because it's new funding. So I would
encourage you to pass this and know that some of these are going to be going to disabled
veterans who have been waiting 10 or 15 years to be able to get into this. And it's good to share
the aloha and the, the carryover from our wonderful New Year's celebration. Thank you, Joe -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: --and Members.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for Mitch at this time? Seeing none, thank you again,
and thank you for speaking up for the veterans.
MR. SKAGGERBERG: And continued blessings for a good year for all of you, aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mitch.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One last request from the Chair, is there anyone that wanna provide public
testimony at this time? Seeing none, Members if there's no objections, the Chair would like to
close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONE . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair's gonna call for a short break. Ten.. .return at 3:05 because we have
seven items that we need to.. .eight items that we need to take care of; although, it's only one
agenda item, but there's eight individual requests. So please report back at 3:05, thank you.
This meeting is now in recess. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

2:58 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:11 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
. (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, again this afternoon we have one item, BF-13, Department of Housing
and Human Concerns Affordable Housing Fund Program Annual Plan for Fiscal Year 2012. A
total of eight projects are recommended for approval totaling over $4.2 million. So at this time,
Chair would like to call on Housing and Human Concerns Director, Jo-Arm Ridao, for some
comments. After your comments, the Chair is gonna review each project one at a time.
Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair, and Happy New Year, everyone. I'd like to kinda go over with you a
little background on how we came to where we are today with these eight projects. We did the
advertising in the Maui News and then there was a deadline. We got 11 applications. The three
other applications were Habitat Kahawai project which we will be funding with HOME monies,
HUD HOME monies; the Kaiwahine project and the Ohana Cove project which were not funded.
The process was that we received.. .there were three.. .we, we had a committee of three people. I
was on the committee, our assistant housing administrator was on the committee, and we had a
commercial banker on the committee. And we had a scoring sheet that we utilized to assist us in
making this decision. And just to give you an idea, special needs housing was a high priority for
funding. And that is primarily because special needs normally are not able to do the regular
development as other projects are able to do. And the process was a very good one because what
we did was, first, everybody got to review their proposals individually without any discussion or
comment from each other, and then we got together, we discussed it. But first they, they did it
individually, they scored it individually; and then we got together and we discussed it and was
very interesting because pretty much the scoring came out the way you see it here today and with
maybe some slight differences. But it, it came out and it was really interesting to go through this
process because we did have an outsider, commercial banker that was on the committee. So I
think for this year, the, the process worked very well for us and in my opinion you have some
really good projects before you today, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before I call on the Members for comments or questions of you,
I, I just got one fast question. You know, you say you looked at special need housing as a high
priority this go around, a question in regards to projects that we approved—you know, for
developments, it's always affordable housing, workforce housing—any consideration regarding
special needs housing as a condition in the future?
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MS. RIDAO: Well we pretty much go by our.. .there's a housing plan that we do.. .the State does a
housing plan and in that housing plan includes the Maui priorities. The State priority, one of the
priorities for the State, is special needs housing; and special needs housing for Maui County also
was very high.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So as we move forward, what I'm saying is that when the affordable homes
becomes a condition that we not overlook the special needs as an affordable housing priority for
the disabled.
MS. RIDAO: So you're, you're talking about when we discuss residential workforce housing
agreements?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, on projects.
MS. RIDAO: Okay. Yeah, I will keep that in mind, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the Director? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Ridao, you, you mentioned that there were
essentially two that you.. .that didn't qualify because of your scoring or whatnot. Can you say
why or did they want too much money or was it not...I don't know if...
MS. RIDAO: Primarily for Kaiwahine and Ohana Cove, it was because they weren't, they weren't I
would say ready to turn around. We, we scored the people that were—we call it shovel-readybut ready to, to start as soon as possible and, and they were not, in, in those two instances.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Kaiwahine Village, they've got I think three years to start and
one year's down already so they're still not ready to start?
MS. RIDAO: I, I, you know what, I haven't gotten any current reports on Kaiwahine so I'm not sure
where they are. I know they are negotiating with people to help assist in financing as well as
talking about housing credits and that kind of stuff; but I, I have not been privileged to those
negotiations.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And, Mr. Couch, one of the conditions is, on an annual basis, they report to
the Council.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Ms. Ridao? Member Hokama?
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you. You know, we have a component under our grants,
and I'm assuming that these requests to the Committee would fall under this item whereby if
there's either misrepresentation or, or the Departments find misuse, that agency cannot request
for County funds for five years. Is that.. .does that condition falls under this category of request?
MS. RIDAO: You know, in, in our review of these projects, we did not take that into consideration.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn't that one current rule or, or part of our current policy on how we look at
grants? I, I don't know if you have a, a comment, Mr. Baz, or if Corporation Counsel has a
comment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Baz or Corporation Counsel, either one?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair Good afternoon, Council, happy New Year. My name is Sandy Baz
and Budget Director. Chapter 3.36 of Maui County Code which includes the Maui County
grants program which is under review by our Administration as well as your Committee, has a, a
condition, 3.36.130, regarding non-compliance. It says, any recipient who withholds or omits
any material facts or deliberately represent...misrepresents such facts to the Committee, the
Council, the Mayor, any agency shall be in violation of this Chapter. If the Committee finds that
the recipient has violated the Chapter in terms of this contract, the Committee shall inform the
Mayor who shall inform the Council in writing. And upon Council's concurrence, the recipient
shall be prohibited from applying for any grant for five years following such finding. So from,
from our understanding, and, and maybe Ms. Ridao mentioned that she has not applied 3.36 to
the Affordable Housing Fund 3.35.
MS. RIDAO: And to add to that, Member Hokama -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. RIDAO: --we were not made aware of anyone that was in non-compliance. So...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank, thank you for those responses, I, I appreciate, appreciate your folks'
thoughts. Again I am thinking since we, we heard this afternoon that many of these requests
before the Committee is shovel-ready, Mr. Chairman, but I understand that last term the
ordinance was revised whereby the approval was given to the project and not necessarily to a, a
timeframe that we hold normal CIPs to. And, yet, like we heard with...comments on an earlier
project, until a, a question was brought up by a Member, we had no idea that that project was not
moving forward to the level that we were given assurances on what it would have happened on
the first approval. So that was what was given to us to convince us to give our initial approval,
okay. So what was represented to us did not occur. So when does...is I guess requirements or
safety nets that the Council puts it in the ordinances to protect the people's assets.. .their, their
finances come into play... is the question I have, Chairman.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And maybe, Ms. Ridao, in regards to the recipients of these
Affordable Housing funds, the grants, do we do an annual report, where they at as far as each of
the organization that, that is provided funding from the County of Maui?
MS. RIDAO: Yes, we are required to do an annual report.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And is it shared with the County Council?
MS. RIDAO: With the County Council? I think so, yeah? I, I'm pretty sure we submitted that to the
Maui County Council.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Ms. Ridao, under Item No. 9 which you put for expenses, that small
amount, $70,000 request, that is to take care all your audit, audit requirements that you will need
within this program area?
MS. RIDAO: Yes, this year is the first time that we will be doing an auditing on the use of Affordable
Housing funds.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You believe that is sufficient amount to request? Because I don't have a
problem beefing it up to make sure we get a very good audit done.
MS. RIDAO: I'm, I'm pretty comfortable with that amount. We are going to.. .in fact I think we
already did a Request for Proposals on...because we're going to combine it with doing some
auditing in the grants area also. So I think we have enough money.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Now this would be a finance audit as well as a performance audit or
operational audit?
MS. RIDAO: It's going to be primarily finance, however, they will be checking on performance
measures, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Director. Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions to opening remarks of Ms. Ridao?
Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Ridao, No. 7, the First-Time Home
Buyer's Program, $300,000. This is for providing up to 15,000 for down payments. What was
originally used in terms of a, a number for this particular loan program? Was it always 300,000?
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MS. RIDAO: The.. .no, the original budget amount was $200,000. We'll be able to assist 13 people.
We've already closed approximately ten closings. So, you know, in a month or so, we're gonna
close three more and that's gonna be it for the First-Time Home Buyer's Program. We had a
lottery drawing of 115 applicants; and so with the, the 300,000 we are requesting, we'll be able
to assist approximately 20 more of those applicants for a total of 33 -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MS. RIDAO: --first-time home buyers.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Is there a list of individuals waiting in line for potential downs?
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And how big is that list?
MS. RIDAO: Hundred and fifteen.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: A hundred and fifteen. And these, these individuals are all within
which bracket, the 100 percent down or higher than 100?
MS. RIDAO: It's 140 percent and below.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, well good. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, the Chairman is gonna take each item. Right now we kinda
jumping, yeah, we went from 8 to 7. So we'll, we'll take the first item on the agenda which is
Aloha House Clean & Sober Rental Project – Aloha House, Inc. and their request is $340,000.
And this is for acquisition of dwelling unit, three bedrooms or more to serve five single adults,
and participating in intensive substance abuse treatment programs. And, Ms. Ridao, if you could
kinda provide us with some short summary in regards to this particular request and...so that the
Members can digest what you have to say and I'll ask the Members if they have any questions.
MS. RIDAO: Okay. I believe I, I, I don't have to tell you who Aloha House is, they are our providers
of substance abuse services. And, as we all know, one of our big community problems has been
substance abuse. And in the area of this program, it would provide for independent living and
that comes with services. And people that are on...or are on substance of course—you know, I
kinda see it as an illness—they need to get into treatment, intense treatment at first. But like Jud
had explained, lots of times when they're done with their short-term, intense treatment, they're
back in the community where they came from and back into the same environment where they
came from. These.. .this house will be.. .will provide an opportunity for someone to get into a
longer term environment where they, they will continue getting assistance so that when they do
get out into the community, they're prepared, they're able to get into housing, they probably will
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be assisted with getting a job, stabilizing their life. And I personally feel, and the Committee
felt, that there is a need for this kind of housing in the community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. In regards to this particular item, Chair has just one question.
Why the request through the Affordable Housing Program rather than the Substance Abuse
Program?
MS. RIDAO: I'm, I'm, I'm sorry, I'm not sure you're talking about the Substance Abuse Fund in the
General Fund?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We, we provide grants for substance abuse.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah, and in.. .the history for that fund has been mostly for services versus, versus
housing, building housing or purchasing housing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, questions? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair Ms. Ridao, on this.. .the, the Aloha House
house, I know there was a, a...an attempt many years ago to try and do that in a neighborhood
and, and the neighborhood had an issue with that. Have you worked with Aloha House to get a,
a buy-in from the neighborhood as well?
MS. RIDAO: You know, as Jud had explained, Councilmember Couch, they currently do have houses
in the community. And with my experience—and I'm sure Jud would have been able to give
you more information on this—like in any kind of alternative housing or affordable housing,
there's always that issue of "not in my backyard". I think people have come to realize and
especially with Aloha House there are other—oh, Women Helping Women—programs that are
integrated into the community. Neighbors have found that they are very well run; and in fact I
think they feel safer because in most of these facilities, there are live-in staff. So it's a 24-hour,
staffed facility. So it is in fact safer than living next to a...to somebody that you don't even
know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Yeah, I was, I was hoping that we didn't have a lot
of opposition from the neighbors.
MS. RIDAO: But not, not recently, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good. The other question I have is, do the, the, the folks that stay at
these things—it's, it's kind of a...while they're getting back on their feet, after they've gone
through the program—do they pay a rent, a nominal rent or is this just totally within the, the
confines of the Aloha House program?
MS. RIDAO: It is my understanding that they do contribute. Now some people actually have work,
have jobs I mean they go through the program with jobs. So they are able to contribute and then

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2012

Aloha House does work with those persons that are, are.. .have no income. So they.. .usually if
they're in program, they will qualify for welfare assistance. And then they can contribute
whatever they're able to.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thanks. And I guess that's how it can kind of fall under the
Affordable Housing section then.
MS. RIDAO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good question, and I was gonna ask about the use of the fund and
there, there are some criterias, A through H, and, you know, where does it fall. And I think you
answered that question. Members, any more questions for Ms. Ridao on Aloha House?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, and thank you, Ms. Ridao. Yeah, I'm definitely a
supporter of, you know, clean and sober living and assisting people to accomplish that. I'm just
looking through the application and a lot of it is not applicable, or not at this time, until property
is purchased. You know, I, I have complete faith in Aloha House to pull something like this off,
but I'm just curious 'cause you said, "shovel-ready" so for me those words aren't sorta in
particular shovel-ready per se. I know they have seven different properties they've been looking
at and I guess as soon as, you know, it's approved for money, they.. .boom, they're gonna pick
one of these sites. But just curious how you look at that being that it's sort of open-ended in a
way, their application. 'Cause there's areas that, you know, you would like to know about the
specific property and, and it's.. .and the, you know, is it road access, sewer, police, fire,
whatever, so on and so forth. But those things cannot be answered due to the fact that the site
hasn't actually been picked, chosen yet. So I'm just, you know, I guess you have confidence that
all seven sites will fall into the, the checks that they've marked in this application.
MS. RIDAO: Correct. We, we are assuming that all seven sites fall within their needs; and usually
what will happen is when they get into a contractual agreement, we will be privy to that. And if
we have concerns, those will be brought up; but in my opinion once funding is granted, they're
able to actually now do some serious negotiations to do purchase. And that can happen pretty
quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is there a timeframe of the purchase like say one year, two years?
MS. RIDAO: Council Chair I mean Budget Chair, I'm, you know, I'm assuming that this is going to
happen within a year, easily within a year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions on Aloha House? Chairman Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And, Ms., Ms. Ridao, currently Aloha House request
funds not from the Affordable Housing Fund, but they also request funds for the operation of
their, their operations, yeah.
MS. RIDAO: Their ground operations, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Can you tell me how much that is, do you recall?
MS. RIDAO: I, I'm sorry I, I can't recall offhand.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Well my only reason for asking is because I see this as an
expansion program; and my worry becomes, we're already providing Aloha House X amount of
dollars for the operation of the Aloha House. And now we are helping to create another very
needed component; but I...you better believe we're gonna see them here again asking for
continuum, and that's what, that's what worries me at this point. At what point can we look at
these very deserving projects and say, "We just cannot continue carrying the load" so for
whatever it's worth, I share my concerns. And it's not that the projects are not.. .invalid because,
you know, all these nonprofits provide valid services, period. But for me it's how much money
we actually gonna be dishing out, and it becomes a yearly process for us and that continues to
worry me. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Ms. Ridao.
MS. RIDAO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Okay, seeing none, thank you.
Next one is Hale o' Ekolu — ARC of Maui County. Ms. Ridao, if you have any comments to
make 9
MS. RIDAO: Similar comments to Aloha House. Special needs - the Executive Director, Audrey
McGauley, did a good job in explaining that this house will be specific to wheelchair-bound
people that have, in the recent past, had to move to Oahu away from their families. I just wanted
to add that with, with developmentally disabled, a lot of our developmentally disabled people are
also aging. And so the worry is that they no longer can be cared for by family, and they need to
be in housing that provides them the services that is required so that they can live independently.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to this one here? No questions? Okay,
thank you. Next one up is Harbor Lights Project — Habitat for Humanity. Ms. Ridao?
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MS. RIDAO: Again Sherri did a good job in explaining this proposal. The.. .1, I wanna, I wanna add
here that we want to add another 100,000 to this request so it would be from 300,000 to 400,000,
and she is going to go from eight units to ten units. I wanna encourage anyone here that has the
time to go and do a tour of Harbor Lights. I was.. .1 did a tour with Sherri and I was very
pleasantly surprised and, you know, I think they should change the name from Harbor Lights to
Better Lights or something because it definitely is a better place and it is...I was very pleasantly
surprised at the security, the cleanliness, the, the, the conditions of everything. There was.. .was
most surprising to me and I'm, I'm encouraged by what Habitat for Humanity is doing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions on the request? Member...Chairman Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I, I really liked this particular proposal.
And because it's going from eight to ten, is there an assumption that there's more than ten units
available for, you know, for purchase -MS. RIDAO: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --for, for Habitat?
MS. RIDAO: I, I know that there are several foreclosures and should, you know, Sherri be able to come
back with more, we will be back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? None? Okay, thank you. Next
one is Hale Makana 0 Waiale Rehabilitation Project — Ka Hale A Ke Ola Homeless. Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: On this project, I just want to add to what Becky and Joe reported on. This.. .Hale
Makana 0 Waiale was one of several nonprofits that went through a special training and service
that the Department was able to secure grant funding for technical assistance on upkeep and
maintenance of their projects. And I think it has served them well. They have, you know, they
have sought out the expertise that they need to maintain and upgrade their facilities, and I think
what they're asking for is very needed and worthwhile, the County putting our money there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to this one here? I just have one fast
one. Again the use of the fund, is, is this proper use of the Affordable Housing fund to do
renovation work? I know this is difficult questions, but -MS. RIDAO: Oh, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --they need to be asked.
MS. RIDAO: I, I, I believe, Chair, that everyone receives the 3.35.010, the purpose of the fund.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MS. RIDAO: And then under A, I believe it mentions rehabilitation. Yeah, including the rehabilitation
of existing structures which is on the fifth line -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Or last line, yeah.
MS. RIDAO: --fifth line, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, questions? If not, we go to the next one,
Neighborhood Revitalization Program — Na Hale 0 Maui. Questions, Members? I think John
did a very good job on that one. Kulamalu Affordable Housing Project — County of Maui,
Jo-Ann?
MS. RIDAO: Yes, thank you. As all of you are aware, you approved funds for us to purchase land in
the Kulamalu Planned Development. I, I am asking for these funds so that we can begin the
process to master plan that property as well as to make sure that we are, you know, in the proper
entitlement process. So I'm confident that 500,000 will be, will be sufficient.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions to this one here? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you tell the Committee, Director, what entitlement requirements you
believe may, may be necessary?
MS. RIDAO: Well, I think if we're going to be using government funds, government funds to do the
construction and stuff like that, we, we're gonna have to do an EA or an EIS or...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is not about zoning or Land Use Commission?
MS. RIDAO: No, zoning is proper. We have the proper zoning. We have sewer, water, roads are all in
so that's not going to be an issue, but the master . . . (coughs) . . ., excuse me. I'm, I'm.. .we
have.. .there's some difference of opinion as far as how many units to put on there. And so I
wanna like get a consultant to help me work through that as far as what we can put on there:
number of units; type of units; one, two, three bedrooms; can we have a small facility on there
for child care. All of those things need to be discussed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Would it make it easier if you just go to one competitive bid proposal and
let all these outside entities come and give you their thoughts of what they might want you to
consider; and instead of you setting the parameters, let them present to you what they feel is I
guess appropriate use of that property of ours?
MS. RIDAO: I have considered that as an alternative, Council member, however, I would like to get
some consultation and advice on, you know, the, the best use. I mean that, that property is a very
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nice property, it's in a very nice environment. So how we.. .how can we make this project fit in
as, as best as possible with some of the, with some of the, you know, like.. .1, I really would like
to have child care, but is that appropriate? And what do we have to do in order to do that? And
so that's what I wanted to use this money for. I don't know if maybe in this effort, we can set the
parameters and then get, and then get the proposals.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I, I just was curious in your, your approach, Director. And again, you
know, we, we leave a lot of things up to the Department and Administration. But I would hope
you would also keep the parameters wide enough including the potential sale of this asset to
further fund other types of projects in this category.
MS. RIDAO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair And I just want to suggest, Ms. Ridao, you
remember when we looked at this, to purchase the land, there was considerable testimony from
people who live nearby. It might be a good idea to have some kind of a planning meeting with
them so that we can get some of their input because they had a really...we had a really good
meeting between them and the Mayor, and I was able attend that meeting. And, you know, they
have a lot of good ideas about what they'd like to see around them so just a suggestion.
MS. RIDAO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not, we go to First-Time Home
Buyer's Program — County of Maui, $300,000. Jo-Ann, I think you touched base on this. Any
more comments in regards to this here? Members, any, any questions? Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair Ms. Ridao, last time we spoke about this, you, you
explained the need to go to 15,000 from I believe we were doing 10 previously. You recall...
MS. RIDAO: I think the program always was 15,000, our program.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think it was...
MS. RIDAO: Wait, I going look at my staff. Yeah? It's always been 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: For this year, but previously I believe it was 10.
MS. RIDAO: Well I, I thought it was always 15.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well, I guess my, my question is, you've got a, a waiting list of, you
said, 115 people.
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I always wonder.. .well if you have to do a lottery to hand out these
benefits, are we better off...my recollection was that there was a reason why we needed to go to
15 because it made it more doable with the lending institutions or something like that. But when
we have a limited amount of money and we have a, a long list of people, I wonder whether we
should be cutting the, the amount from fifteen to seven thousand, you know, 7,500 or something
like that so that we can, we can help more people. But I'm sure that at some point, that, that
assistance becomes less effective. But could you share with us what the rationale for 15,000
rather than a lower number might be?
MS. RIDAO: I believe you're correct. The 15,000 was.. .would be.. .would make the loan substantially
stronger. I think for...I'm not sure if all of the ones we funded so far have used the full 15,000,
but it's up to 15,000. So some people may need the full 15,000 and others may not. But I was
looking at my list and we've, we have run the full gamut. We've had a family whose income is
26,500 up to a family that has 95,000. So we have gone from the 60 percent all the way up to the
140 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: And what was the...
MS. RIDAO: So I'm, I'm thinking that—I, I, I don't know if my staff has a strong feeling—but I, I
would like to keep it at the 15,000 'cause it gives us that flexibility.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well what's.. .maybe I'd feel more comfortable if you can tell me what
the range of those.. .what's, what's the average award then?
MS. RIDAO: Were they all 15? They were all 15,000. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: It just...yeah, I, I guess, Chair, I'm just a little uncomfortable with, with
it being that high because we're basically taking, taking taxpayers' money from other
homeowners and running a lottery. And I guess the higher that number is, the more
uncomfortable I am with a, with a lottery. But I, I understand the.. .and appreciate the, the
project, I just wish we could apply it to more people.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, Mr. White, just for your information, 2011, $200,000, 15,000 for each I
guess grantee that was appropriated last time for 2011. My question to Ms. Ridao is that now
that I know the income level, in the Affordable Housing program, the purposes as well as the use
of the fund, where does it fit? I know there is, from the General Fund, that $200,000, and I don't
know if you continue to receive the HOME funds. And I understand that now Section 8 can be
utilized for purchasing homes. So if you can explain the purposes and the use of the Affordable
Housing Fund in regards to this First-Time Home Buyer's?
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MS. RIDAO: The, the...in, in...and this is only in mind, the purpose of the First-Time Home
Buyer's.. .1 mean the Affordable Housing Fund is to.. .I'm, I'm looking at... so it's the.. .to
protect and expand affordable housing and suitable living environments for residents of the very
low to gap group. So I mean that's where I see that this fits in.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I, I think in my mind, you know, I look at creating units, creating units like
construction type. Maybe, Corporation Counsel, if you can provide us with some guidance over
here, if this would fit in?
MS. HEELY: Mahalo, Mr. Chair, and good afternoon. Ms. Ridao did cite to the correct Maui County
Code Section and it is broad enough. She didn't complete the whole entire sentence of that
sentence which describes the purpose of the Affordable Housing Fund which states, "protection
and expansion of affordable housing and suitable living environments for residents of very low
to gap income including the rehabilitation of existing structures, land purchase, or other
acquisition of land or property entitlements, planning, design, and construction." So both of you
are right in terms of other acquisition or land or property entitlements and, and/or design or
construction. So I think it's broad enough to include the down payments issue.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Ridao, in regards to that First-Time Home Buyer's Program,
does the County get any monies back?
MS. RIDAO: Chair, the County would get money back if the applicant...if the person receiving down
payment assistance decides to sell their property within a 15-year period.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what if the buyer stays in more than 15 years, then we forgive them?
MS. RIDAO: Yes, that's the way the program is run right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and, and I, I can understand Mr. White's concern. Our General Fund is,
you know, actually paying for some of...paying for these down payments. So, Members, any
questions? Member Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And, yeah, I echo your sentiments and Mr. White's
sentiments as well. What, what are some of the requirements? I know you just said, 140 percent
or less, but is there some strict screening of these folks to make sure that they're gonna be able to
afford to keep the payments up on the house?
MS. RIDAO: Well the.. .Member Couch, the actual screening comes in when they are, you know, told
that they've been chosen and then they need to go out and work with a banker as well as a realtor
in order to find a house that can fit into the amount that they can borrow. So actually the banks'
scrutiny is way stricter as far as them being able to pay their mortgage for a 30-year period than
ours is.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And I guess this was put in a while back, but it...I would think
that these funds would be put to better use in assisting people getting into...or rental units being
created or people getting into rental units so that they can work up to getting on their own and,
and getting a house on their own, but to.. .and I don't know, Mr. Chair, if I'm getting out of the,
the purview of this meeting, but...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: This is good discussion, let me tell you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It is good discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, because I mean would...it would nice to have a, a, a 15,000
down payment for a home. But I mean all the taxpayers, generally homeowners, are paying for,
in this case, 20, 20 additional people to, to.. .families to have homes. I, I would think getting
people into good affordable rentals so they can save in order to get their own down payment and
move out and, and move into the buyer's market at that time would be a, a much better use of our
funding. 'Cause I would think $15,000 would help a lot more than just one family on the rental
side.
MS. RIDAO: I, I just wanna comment, Council member, that, you know, I, I wanna thank
Mr. Andersen and Mr. Blackburn because in, in this...in my opinion, this is a well-rounded plan.
You have all facets, you know, down payment assistance is only one program and one facet of,
of creating affordable housing. The way I look at the First-Time Home Buyer's Program, the
first group that went through this, you know, we have no delinquencies. I see those people as
long-term in their homes as well as this new group. I think they, they also see themselves as, as
like other people that have testified to be really lucky to have received this First-Time Home
Buyer's assistance and that they will probably be in there for.. .in that home for 30 years. Same
with Na Hale 0 Maui, being another alternative of getting affordable housing. So all of the
programs, one way or the other, are subsidized, all of the programs in here are subsidized; but
there are various ways of providing affordable housing. For an individual to, to, to do a house on
their own, you know, they have to be getting 140 or more, 160,000 or more in income to go in
and apply and qualify on their own without down payment assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Couch, okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, before I go any further, just to correct myself. In 2011, it was $10,000;
and 2012, it's 15. So you're right.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So I wasn't having a senior moment?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
MS. RIDAO: Sorry, I was.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Victorino followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll let Ms. Baisa go first.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I agree this is a, a really good discussion and I guess it's time we had
it. But, you know, this idea of lottery, this idea of luck, plays into many, many affordable
housing programs that go on. Because many, many times including Hawaiian Homes, you
know, it's a lottery that you get pulled your number, and if your number comes up early, you
lucky. So, you know, that element seems to be prevalent in dealing with affordable housing.
I'm trying to compare.. .1 was trying to, to come up with, well if we didn't do the Affordable
Housing grant we're talking about, would they fit under the Na Hale 0 Maui format and would it
be easier to just have one program instead of two going? But really, either way, the purchase of
the house is subsidized because I think Na Hale 0 Maui mentioned a figure, a very large figure,
that goes into the renovation of the home before they sell it. And so that...even that is
subsidized.
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think, I think I heard like 100,000 or something. So based on that, I
can, I can support the First, First-Time Home Buyer's Program looking at it from the perspective
of the Director who's saying she likes to have a lot of tools in her toolbox because folks will fit
in one or the other. And I agree also with the Members who say, "Well this is quite an amount
of subsidy to one family." But if you look at all of the programs, every single one is subsidized.
Even with Habitat for Humanity, yes, the, the, the eventual owner puts in a lot of sweat equity,
but so does Habitat for Humanity. So every one of these programs is subsidized. I guess it has
to be if you're talking about truly affordable housing. So it's not a, a cut-and-dried subject. And
I think being able to sit here and listen and look at all of this is very healthy, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair The other aspect, and I was one of those when
this first came out, wasn't particularly excited about it; but I've seen the results that you have
spoken of. I know some of the people who have qualified for these, and they become.. .not only
have a sense of pride and work harder to, to exist in this community, they pay taxes and real
property taxes. So in essence if you were to take 15 years out, and they pay seven or eight
hundred dollars, we would retrieve our money by that tax base if you were to talk in that respect.
And that was brought up by former Member Molina. He, he used to profess that they become
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taxpayers because they're paying real property tax, and that helps them because that money
comes back in another form. Whereas rentals on the other hand, doesn't have that same
ambiance, although, it does accommodate. And we're putting $1 million here into our rental
assistance program again, and we've done that in many forms in many areas, right, Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So as far as helping people who need the help, to be able to help
themselves, that's another issue that I kinda gravitate to. And this is one of those programs that
helps those who are willing to help themselves. Same thing with Ka Hale, you know, they go
there not to live there forever, but to get out of that cycle, to become productive citizens, to
become a part of the community, to become taxpayers. So, you know, Chair, we can pay Peter,
we can pay Paul, we're gonna pay it someplace. I like to think because Peter is moving ahead
and becoming self-reliant, I'm not feeding that man a fish every day, I taught him how to fish
and then he becomes self-reliant in the future, or she. You know, using biblical terms of course,
you know, I'm, I'm not being specific, yeah. But I, I really, you know, I, I... so I know this
discussion is good. I think, you know, we had great this morning, we get great discussion this
afternoon, we spent a lot of time discussion. I, I tell you we're the best discussers in the whole
world. I not sure, but I believe that we do really have—it's a perception, perception he said,
that's what Mr. White said, I don't know, but, you know, I don't disagree—but I really believe
what we're trying to do is really help people to help themselves and I can...I think anybody out
there really sees the whole picture who prefer seeing that occurring than just, just helping people
to exist and not giving 'em an opportunity to help themselves. That's my take on it, Mr. Chair,
thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, thank you. Ms. Ridao, you know, through the General Fund we allocated
$200,000 for this affordable First-Time Home, Home Buyer's Program. So in the future, how
you going address this? Is it all into the First-Time Home Buyer's Fund through the General
Fund or through the Affordable Housing Fund?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you for asking that question, Budget Chair. As you know, the budget is coming
around, and I believe last year I, I, I believe I requested 400,000 last year. And it was cut to
200,000. And the reason we're coming through the Affordable Housing Fund is because we see
a need and we would like to help more people. If...I, I'm going to put it into my General Fund
budget; but if it gets cut again, we probably going come back here through this means again if
we continue having the demand that we see in this program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just for your information, the Mayor submitted 200, we added a
100 which became 300, and we had that issue on the minimum tax and it went back down to 200.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So.. .and the reason for my questioning is that, you know, right now we do
have, you know, two funding source that will create over half a million dollars for First-Time
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Home Buyers. And like Mr. White said, you know, maybe we should take a look at this and
rather than 15, go, go 10 or 7,500. So, you know, you, you, you have more first-time home
buyers, you know, having the opportunity to get grants from the County. So that's my take on
this. Mr. Baz, you had a question?
MR. BAZ: Thank, thank you, Mr. Chair. Yeah, currently the Mayor is reviewing the, the budgets that
were presented from the Departments. We have gotten those so far. And in reviewing this
Affordable Housing Fund plan and its submittal to the Council, looking at the items... and, and
this particular items especially in... first of all, the, the use of the... of Affordable Housing Fund
for this project, one of the things that we looked at was the nexus between the availability of, of
affordable housing units and people... getting people into homeownership. As we get lowincome people into homeownership, the low-income housing unit that they previously occupied
will then become available. So there is a, a, a sort of a nexus of increasing the inventory of
affordable housing...available affordable housing. Say if, if somebody from Hale Makana 0
Waiale was able to then be able to get, you know, this home buyer...First-Time Home Buyer
assistance and get the down payment, then that, that Hale Makana unit becomes available, right,
so that's the nexus between...of that. The second item is, is that while I, I don't know the final
decision of the Fiscal Year '13 proposed Budget, as far as this is related, if the Affordable
Housing Fund is utilized for this, the likelihood of General Fund monies will be reduced so that
we can, you know, we'll probably balance it out and look at...see what the needs are. And the
requirement of funding for these...this First-Time Home Buyer's project, whether it be funded
through the Affordable Housing Fund, the General Fund, or both.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, would be good if one side only and maybe through the Affordable
Housing Fund and just do away with the General Fund grants.
MR. BAZ: That's my personal inclination, yeah, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Ms. Ridao on this one here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My recollection, Chairman, is we had set this up originally as a zero
interest, revolving loan program where we asking the...at that time that those existing property
owners to help this component of our community to become property owners or, or, or
residential property owners. And, and we had success earlier on our solar water heater initiative
where that was also a zero interest, revolving loan whereby it got paid back at no interest, but it
helped then another qualified family or, or property owner to enjoy those benefits. I don't see
why we don't go back to this zero interest. And if it's 15,000 and you, you tell them they got 15
years to pay it back at no interest, $1,000 a year, whereby at the end of that term, they then are
able to help someone for the help they received from those of us that are the current existing
providers of the fund, their opportunity then to give back and give another family that same
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opportunity they had. I think that is a more effective way of creating responsibility and how to
have the County stretch its resources because I think we all have other use of General Fund
monies in other projects that we would like to see within the County and in our districts,
Chairman. So I hope we would consider going back to something of that nature because, you
know, I think we should always go back and talk about the group that is paying the subsidy. You
know, the, the, the target group and what we would like to have accomplished for that, you
know, has never been pretty much the debatable question. The question comes on how long do
we carry this and is it fair on the existing tax base to keep providing? But nobody talks about
what is happening to the current tax base. You know, there comes a point where we cannot
afford to provide for these opportunities. So I hope we take a look at the whole picture,
Chairman, 'cause I think there's ways of stretching it out and, and maybe serving more people
than just, just one way of going out instead of having it recycled. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, that, that discussion was always... was brought up, too,
Mr. Chair, if you remember. That was brought up a number of years ago, and that has always
met with the fact that the banks hold that against you. The financial institution holds that against
you. It is not the same as a solar water heater, totally different. Because when you go into
borrow the money, you can only have X amount of debt versus amount of money you borrowing
for that home. And I remember when I bought my first home, Mr. Chair, I no had these things,
none of this existed. I had to have a friend, borrow $3,000 so that I could make the down
payment for my first home. So I couldn't borrow any more money because I was leveraged out,
I could not take any more money, I would be disqualified. So part of the reason why this cannot
be put in as a loan or as a grant was that mere fact, and we discussed that, Mr. Chair, in this
Chamber with the other, the other Council members when...the prior Council when this issue
was brought up. Because that was one of my, my first thoughts was, why don't we make this a
loan, you know, like Mr. Hokama said. But the banks and financial institutions says, oh, if you
do that, than that's gonna be deducted against their qualification amount, and so for some of
them, no sense. They, they take the loan, yeah, they don't qualify to have enough; all of a
sudden, they don't qualify for the home. So that's when that evolved into what we did. Whether
I totally agree with it or not, I am saying that's where we came to this point. If you do put it
back as a loan or even as a grant, it is held against that particular couple or people buying that
home and that could disqualify them because they would be in excess of what they can borrow
so that's a real challenge. Again like I said earlier, you pay Peter, pay Paul; but somewhere
along the line, something's gotta give in this area. So I would, I would suggest maybe some
other things like maybe Ms. Ridao looking at, at leveraging for these people like if they can
borrow so much and we cover the difference, you know, I mean if they can put up so much down
payment and we covering the difference up to a certain amount, that might be another option.
But if we put this down as a loan, even if it's interest free, even if it's for 15 years, it still will be
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held against them as a, as a loan outstanding against them, as indebtedness I should say. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to add to what Member Victorino has said. I was here when this
debate went on. And, yes, it is a concern because it does skew the debt/equity ratio and
disqualify people from being able to get a loan. The other concern that the banks has was, was
that the County would then be a, a loan that might have to be paid back first in the event that
there was default on the loan and the banks did not like that. So it became a barrier to people
being able to qualify for a loan and that's why we changed it from a grant to a loan.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions, Members? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, just, just quick, and I think from a loan to a grant, right,
Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Loan to a grant.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: From a loan to a grant, I'm sorry, yes, you're correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But that was the reason.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And interesting, you know, the banks are one of the problems in this whole
financial crisis.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Occupy Maui.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But then, Chairman, if we grant this 15,000, is that considered income to
that family and is that taxable?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel, we need your help. Should be.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause if it doesn't count.. .is counts as, you know, to the bank that this is
one additional note, then maybe the County would say, "You pay off first." Then is this 15,000
again viewed as income to the receiving family and do they pay taxes on it? And does this
change then what percentile they're in, that qualifies for the original loan?
MS. HEELY: Chair, I would have to look into that and if there's any TNT form or reporting
requirements or that type of income received.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. We'll get information from Corporation Counsel in regards
to your question, Mr. Hokama, which is a very good question. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. You know, it kinda scares me to think about that
because then do all benefits that are given to.. .cash benefits or, you know, like Section 8 rent
paid or whatever, then does it all become a subject to IRS? Interesting question, a very good
one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Ms. Ridao can give us -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't think so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --insight in regards to Section 8 and if there's any Federal exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not that I know of.
MS. RIDAO: You know, not that...I'm sorry, Chair, not that I know of. In fact, you know, a, a similar
program in Section 8 that we're.. .we have the homeownership program where we have worked
with Habitat for Humanity and persons that are on Section 8, their rent goes towards paying their
mortgage. So I don't know that would open a whole can of worms. I don't think that's included
as their income.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We don't want worms.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Interesting dynamics
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, any more questions on this one here? Member White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I think that the Federal government allows gifting of
I think 13,000 at this point so I don't know whether that would be considered a gift, but, but I, I
would again.. .unless Ms. Ridao has a, a rationale to keep it at 15, I'd like to recommend that we
reduce it to ten.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's a recommendation. I'm not going to take any recommendations right
now, okay, we going through the process.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: Chair -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
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MS. RIDAO: --if I might make a comment? I think before you make that decision, if it's possible, I
think you should hear from the person who runs the program. He's in the, in the gallery, and I
saw him shaking his head so he may be able...he may have better and more information on why
it should remain at 15,000.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
MS. RIDAO: And he's done all 23.. .he's worked with all 23 families to buy their homes under this
program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. RIDAO: So if we have time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay, you wanna bring him up now -COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --since they're on the subject?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please, Mr. Chair
MS. RIDAO: Okay, Buddy can you come up? This is Buddy Almeida. Buddy is our Assistant Housing
Administrator and he formerly was employed with Finance Factors. I gonna move over. So
Buddy can explain to you...oh, well -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, whoa, whoa.
MS. RIDAO: --I'll move ova dea. We playing musical chairs He can explain to you why I think the
15,000 is important.
MR. ALMEIDA: Alright, good afternoon, Chair, Council members. Based on my background in
lending, I guess the one good thing with regards to this program is that we're at a time where
properties are affordable. 'Cause if it wasn't for that, in my opinion honestly, the 15,000 would
not even begin to help the people who need the assistance. These are individuals who don't have
any savings, who, you know, are relatively...their means are limited. And for even a...say a
$300,000 mortgage, that 15,000 could easily be eaten up just in closing costs. So it doesn't even
touch, you know, any down payment assistance to help them qualify. We...in researching the
program and looking back, this is the third year that we've done it. The initial year had problems
because prices were higher, it was a lot harder to, to utilize these funds; but the 15,000 just in my
opinion from what I've seen is, is important to be able to assist the individuals to, to purchase the
homes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, with that comment, no savings, no assets, how
many. oh, do we know if anybody defaulted on their loans?
MR. ALMEIDA: No, not at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Not yet? Okay. Questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And so, Mr. Almeida, you, you don't have any,
other than what you've seen over the last few years, any other statistical facts from other areas or
other programs that you use as a, as a, as a means? You're just kind of...your opinion.
MR. ALMEIDA: Correct, yeah, that would be based on, you know, having worked in lending for, for
16 years and, and working to qualify buyers and seeing, you know, the full gamut on that side of
it. You know, from what the individuals that are in this income category are, you know, these
percentages, it's.. .the 15,000 is vital in order to, to be able to...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you're, you're saying if I went out for a $300,000 home, right,
closing costs and, and down payment, 15,000 would pretty much take care of that type of
situation with someone of this, this nature with that type of financial scenario?
MR. ALMEIDA: Yes, we've seen people close in, in that category.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what happened to like the 10 percent down and all of these, do
you just.. .is that kind of waived in the, in the wind? I, I don't know, I'm just asking because -MR. ALMEIDA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I, I haven't.. .1 just recently did something and that's why I'm
asking these questions because...
MR. ALMEIDA: There is...we've seen varied programs that the individuals have, have gotten. They
all go on their own and work with different lenders.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. ALMEIDA: Some have gone through USDA, some FHA, there are programs out there at 3 percent
down which on purchases in the 200, we've seen some Kihei Villages, 140,000. So there's a
wide range based on their income, their job, their credit, as far as what they can, what they can
qualify for.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But the vast majorities have no savings and no other, what I call,
major assets?
MR. ALMEIDA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's how they would qualify for this program?
MR. ALMEIDA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions or questions for Mr. Almeida? Member Hokama?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, so we understand, and you brought up that 300,000 unit as, as, as an
example. So, you know, my understanding is, you know, if you don't wanna pay mortgage
insurance, you put your 20 percent down, down payment. Is that still the standard percent that
the lending institutions request or require?
MR. ALMEIDA: That's correct. Based on what we went through in the past few years, lending has
tightened up and down payment requirements are back to the norm.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so for this 300 example, that.. .that's $60,000, and the County's
gonna ante up in this example, 15,000. And you mentioned that, you know, in one example, this
person has no savings, where's this other 40.. .do they still go for the 20 percent down or they
work the deal whereby they put less down and secure the house and of course they don't get to
write off that, you know, mortgage insurance that they have to purchase?
MR. ALMEIDA: Depending upon...again it varies, but what they can afford they, they, they work it
out I guess to, to best qualify and be able to sustain the loan.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so most of them you, you would say do not make the 20 percent
down or would you say the majority puts the 20 percent?
MR. ALMEIDA: Some do. We've had instances where one was used on a leasehold purchase that was
very reasonable to where they were able to put down the balance and, and not carry any debt.
So, yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: When you give the 15,000 out for the first time, you prefer that to be used as
part of a total 20 percent down payment of the unit being considered or, or you folks...and if not,
you don't let.. .you don't provide the 15,000 at all?
MR. ALMEIDA: I'm sorry, the... again with the ranges and where the prices being where they're at, the
20 percent down is, is realistic and we are seeing that more now than we would've a few years
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ago. With prices in the 140 to 200 thousand range, it's possible for the applicants to come up
with the 20 percent, not have to carry mortgage insurance with the assistance from this program.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's the majority you would say, Mr Almeida?
MR. ALMEIDA: Yes, the, the majority, correct, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I think these statistics would be helpful in the future, Chairman, for
us to have a good sense of success rates and how they implementing the program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, just one quick one to follow up on Mr. Hokama. Do you then say,
because they don't have savings or assets or whatever, that family helps out and that's where the
money might be coming from? 'Cause money has to come from somewhere.
MR. ALMEIDA: In some instances. And maybe I overstated, it's not that all of them don't have any
savings, there again they vary in range. 'Cause as Ms. Ridao mentioned, some in the, you know,
earning 25 to 30 thousand, some households earn a little bit more, they have more in savings so it
does vary. But you are correct, there are instances where they do receive gifts or assistance
when necessary.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would imagine that here in Hawaii most families would try to help if
their kids had an opportunity to get a...an inexpensive home.
MR. ALMEIDA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. ALMEIDA: They take an a.. .advantage of that opportunity, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions on...for Mr. Almeida at this time? If not,
Members, thank you, Mr. Almeida.
MR. ALMEIDA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I move on to the next item which is the Tenant Based Rental
Assistance Program, Chair's gonna take a short recess, maybe five minutes. Short recess.
. . . (gavel). . .

RECESS:

4:22 p.m.
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RECONVENE:

4:28 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA:
.(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we got one more, Tenant Based Rental Assistance Program – County of
Maui temporary, two-year rental assistance program. At the end of the second year, families will
be transferred to the Section 8 Program on a permanent basis. Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair. This recommendation is because we have a waitlist of 3,324 families
on our Section 8 waitlist. And because the turnover is very minimal annually, we.. .we're not
able to make a dent in that list. So we're suggesting that the million dollars be put into a tenant
based rental assistance program that will be run like our Section 8 voucher program. However, it
would be for a maximum of two years. And what happens here is, within the two years, we're
hoping that we can get people onto the Section 8, some of 'em anyway, onto the Section 8
vouchers or we can get people into a situation where they are able to pay market rent within that
two-year period. But it is only for a two-year period.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So this would be taken from the waitlist, right, the people?
MS. RIDAO: Correct, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what happens to the ones that are on the existing program that's on forever
and ever?
MS. RIDAO: I'm sorry, I didn't get the end of that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The ones that on the existing Section 8, I don't know how long they're on
there. Is it more than two years? Is it...when do they get off?
MS. RIDAO: Oh, yeah, the Section 8, the Section 8 voucher program, you can be on there for all of
your life. I mean the plan, however, and the hope is that people are going to be able to
eventually be able to get jobs and to be able to afford market rent housing. However, in our
environment, that's highly unlikely. The people on Section 8, I'm not sure exactly what is the,
what is the average amount that is paid out per family. But, you know, it can range from I, I
would say a thousand or twelve hundred dollars, and some people only pay maybe $80 or $75.
But because of the cost of, of rental housing, people are in need of subsidy. And right now I
think we service 1,300 people, and we have a waitlist of 3,000 people. So, you know, it gives
you an idea, we have about 5,000 people in need of rental assistance.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Wow. Okay, let me ask you one more question before I open up to the
Members. Of the people that are currently on the existing program, Section 8, how many—or
from the past also—how many have gotten out of Section 8?
MS. RIDAO: You know, Chair, it's not a lot that go off the, you know, that are ported out. So I would
say, lucky if 150 a year. What would you say, Wayde, hundred...
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MR. OSHIRO, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Yeah, about 120.
MS. RIDAO: About 120 a year that are able to go off on their own. So then that 120 vouchers go to the
next 120 on the list.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I was gonna.. oh, one last question. On this two-year program, you
know, people are receiving Section 8. Should we move forward on this assistance, how do we
make sure that they don't end up homeless after two years?
MS. RIDAO: You, you mean... okay, there will be a process by which people are interviewed. And,
and they will be screened as far as, you know, if they can feel comfortable with it only being for
two years, what is their plan to get themselves into a situation where they either will not need
Section 8 in two years or how they plan after the two years without Section 8 Assistance to be
able to sustain themselves in housing.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members...Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Chair, I'm really excited to see some
money going to rental assistance. The only question I have for the Director is, on the rental
assistance program that we have which we provide to nonprofit agencies like ME0 and Women
Helping Women and I think the Family Life Center or I can't remember all the agencies that do
rental assistance. Those programs have coordinated services where they do case management
with the person and they try to figure out how they can find a job and, you know, get
themselves.. .and there's a limit, it doesn't go on and on forever.
MS. RIDAO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Have we looked at that as a possible...giving more money to that?
Because it has a time limit and people are assisted in getting off of rental assistance rather than
just on and on and on and on which I think is a real concern for us. What I'm concerned about is
if and when this Federal assistance disappears, then what, Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: Council member, I would fully support giving these funds to the people that are already
doing rental assistance programs. However, one of the reasons why we are keeping this in-house
is that should, for instance, we can use HOME monies should we not have projects to use HOME
monies for. So that was kind of my reasoning or the attractiveness for me to develop this
program in-house is because we get about—well the, the HOME Program is, is...we're gonna be
getting monies every three years versus annually—however, for instance, if we had a million
dollars in HOME funds, and we only had 500,000 in projects to do, we could take that leftover
500,000 and put it into rental assistance in-house. And that's why this was kind of an incentive
for me to start this program in-house.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If you do the program in-house, do you have the services that go along
with providing the Section 8 like, you know, counseling, job placement, and all of.. .training, and
all the things that are done?
MS. RIDAO: No, we don't.. .our program would be run exactly as the Section 8 Program is run right
now. We do.. .we will be taking on the Family Self-Sufficiency Program to assist families to
become self-sufficient. But there is no, yeah, there's no case management that goes along with
this program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's my only reservation about it.
really am glad to see money
go to helping people get into rentals, but I'm concerned about not having the case management
component so that they'll get off of it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good question, thank you. Mr. White followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I agree with Ms. Baisa's concerns about handling
the, the management of it. But the question I had was, how many families will be assisted with
this million dollars? How do you...there's no details as to how you expect the expenditures to
be made.
MS. RIDAO: We're expecting that based on calculations that was done by our Section 8 staff, between
150 and 200 families -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay.
MS. RIDAO: --with this million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Then unlike the others, the, the other programs we're going to be
paying into -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Purchasing.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: --paying into the equity of a house. Can you explain to us how Section
8 works so that we see what the connection is to the rental or to the Affordable Housing Fund?
So I don't, I don't see rental assistance in the, in the use of the funds so if...it maybe because I
don't understand how Section 8 works.
MS. RIDAO: Okay, I can...I'd be happy to explain to you how Section 8 works. But for your
information, under the use of the funds -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. RIDAO: --in here, it says, to increase the supply of affordable rental and owner-occupied housing.
So...

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2012

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Right, but I, I take that to mean that the actual development of units not
just paying somebody's rent.
MS. RIDAO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: So that's, that's my question so...
MS. RIDAO: Okay. And then also in D, to provide housing for elderly, disabled, and homeless
residents lacking a permanent home. But the way the Section 8 Program works is if you are
within a certain income guideline, and I think it's 80 percent and below of median—am I
correct? Fifty percent and below of median, sorry-50 percent and below of median, you are
eligible to receive rental assistance under the Section 8 Program which is a Federally-funded
program. So you come in, you do an application and they do a calculation to determine what
you're able to afford under the program guidelines. So what happens is, say your rent is a
thousand dollars, but based on your income you only can afford to pay $800, your rent is a
thousand dollars, Section 8 will subsidize that $200 monthly. And that's pretty much the basis of
the program.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah, but you had earlier said that the Section 8 payments go towards
your mortgage.
MS. RIDAO: Well some.. .okay, that, that part of the program is the homeownership program. So, for
instance, in the case of where we worked with...actually worked with Habitat for Humanity, the
woman—she came here and testified—her...she received a Hawaiian Homes award.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. RIDAO: Habitat helped her with the construction of her home. So according to the HUD
guidelines, if you are able.. .you're not able to afford the mortgage payment, but you qualify for
Section 8, they will subsidize your mortgage. So in her case, I'm, I'm not sure exactly how
much is paid, but they.. .you can use your Section 8 rent, in other words, to subsidize your
mortgage and I believe it's up to 15 years that they will do this. I, I believe the hope is that, you
know, you will.. .your income will increase so then your mortgage.. .your subsidize amount will
decrease. But the Section 8 can be used for that purposes for 15 years and I see, you know, the
Harbor Lights situation as.. .'cause we have many people renting in Harbor Lights, and if their
rent...their mortgage is going to be the same, they should own a unit versus be renting a unit in
Harbor Lights. But we've not done very many I think four, we've done four. Hopefully this
year we can step it up a little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Chair, my concern is that with this.. .1 think the
purpose of the fund is to expand housing, but if all we're doing is subsidizing rentals, then in
some respects we're keeping the rental rates higher by making it...making additional monies
available. So I...my feeling is that if we're going to do this, we should limit it to those situations
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in which a part of the rental is going towards a, you know, towards a mortgage and so we're
expanding the availability of housing not just, not just subsidizing rentals. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Ridao, why is there a, a waiting list on the
HUD Section 8? Is it because there aren't enough homes?
MS. RIDAO: No. The reason, Member Couch, is that we don't have enough Federal funds that we
receive from the Federal government to provide that assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So these folks would be going into homes that qualify under Section 8?
I guess there's certain qualifications a home has to have, to have?
MS. RIDAO: Yes, we will use the HUD Section 8 guidelines.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And so it is the same rental price that somebody on Section 8 would
also pay with the differences and whatnot?
MS. RIDAO: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. RIDAO: I want to just let Members know that recently we were required to provide to HUD
national office a rental study. And so what, what we...I think we're going to see from that is the,
the maximum rents that will be approved are going to be less. You know, when, when housing
was high and there was a high demand, the rents were high. Now that, you know, housing is less
expensive, I think that is going to come down. We were required to recently do a study of the
rents that we pay and the rents that are out there so we'll see. I think that that's gonna probably
be coming down.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That brings up another whole question, I have one other. But it's been
my experience in looking, that...and from what I hear from realtors and whatnot, because so
many people are defaulting and/or walking away from their homes, they need to rent. So there's
a, a deficit of, of houses available for rent and so the prices of rent are actually going up, it's my
understanding.
MS. RIDAO: My...our experience has been that people on Section 8 have been able to find better units
at the price that they were paying in there, you know, it's, it's a higher quality, higher standard
unit for the amount that they were paying. So that has been our experience.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then one last question, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You mentioned HOME funds, what, what are HOME funds?
MS. RIDAO: HUD, HUD HOME funds—that's just what that title, that fund is titled—can be
used.. .we get an allocation of approximately a million dollars a year. The.. .it's going to.. .it
recently was changed and so we will be getting, instead of a million a year, we'll, we'll be
getting 3 million at...every three years. So our turn is going to come up at the end of three. I
think it's Big Island, Kauai, and then Maui. HOME funds can be used to.. .for us to develop
housing or for us to assist nonprofits to develop housing or we can use it to assist with
predevelopment costs, planning, that kind of stuff for affordable housing.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So like.. .I'm sorry, follow up to... 'cause she mentioned more
than.. .so you said, we might run out of, for instance, we get a million dollars and we only might,
might use 500,000. Why, why would we not use the whole million?
MS. RIDAO: We, we have had situations, Council member, where we have not had enough
applications to use all of our allocation. And these funds are also time-sensitive. So we gotta be
able to use those monies within a certain time period. Not, not often, but we have had those
situations and so we felt that instead of not having a project, it would be good to have a fallback
where we could put that monies to use.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's where this...
MS. RIDAO: And that's, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not, the Chair is going to defer
this item. And we'll bring it up again on-17 th ?—January 17. And this would be the first item
on the agenda. Chair would like to work with Housing and Human Services' Director in regards
to some of the discussion we've been having. Also, as she mentioned, there is a.. .an amendment
that is being requested, but we didn't have any time to include into this mix a request by EAH in
regards to the Affordable Housing Fund. And also she mentioned the $100,000 that is being
requested by Habitat for Humanity. So, Members, we'll defer this item and we'll bring it up
again on January 17 to address not only all of these things here, but the additional 100,000 for
Habitat for Humanity and another project which didn't make the cutoff as far as creating the
agenda for this meeting.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: GCB and EC)
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the Budget and Finance Committee meeting for January
adjourned. . . . (gavel). . .

3 rd

is now

ADJOURN: 4:46 p.m.
APPROVED:

J EPH P1 ITANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:120103:ry

Transcribed by: Raynette Yap

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 3, 2012

CERTIFICATE

I, Rayne-tte Yap, hereby certify that the foregoing represents to the best of my ability,
a true and correct transcript of the proceedings. I further certify that I am not in any way concerned with
the cause.
DATED the 23 rd day of January, 2012, in Kihei, Hawaii

